
PLANNING COMMISSION 

AGENDA 

July 28, 2015 

1





CITY OF OAK HARBOR AGENDA 
PLANNING COMMISSION July 28, 2015 
REGULAR MEETING 7:30 P.M. 
CITY HALL 

ROLL CALL: WASINGER  FREEMAN 

PETERSON  SCHLECHT 

PICCONE  PIERCE 

WALKER-WYSE 

1. Approval of Minutes – June 23, 2015

2. Public Comment – Planning Commission will accept public comment for items not
otherwise on the agenda for the first 15 minutes of the Planning Commission meeting.

3. SIX-YEAR TRANSPORTATION IMPROVEMENT PROGRAM (TIP) – Public Hearing
The Planning Commission will conduct a public hearing to consider the updates to the
Six-Year Transportation Improvement Program for the years 2016-2021. The Planning
Commission will forward a recommendation to the City Council at the conclusion of the
hearing.

4. MEDICAL MARIJUANA CODE – Public Meeting
A moratorium is presently in place prohibiting the establishment of medical marijuana
collective gardens and medical marijuana dispensaries in Oak Harbor.  Recently
adopted State law replaces these use categories and creates a new regulatory scheme.
Staff will continue the discussion began last month and seek a formal recommendation
to extend the existing moratorium.

5. COMPREHENSIVE PLAN LAND USE AMENDMENT – Public Hearing
The Planning Commission will conduct a public hearing on request to change the land
use designation for properties located on the south side of SW 3rd Avenue and north of
the Oak Harbor Middle School (185 SW 3rd Avenue - Parcels R13203-488-4830,
R13203-348-4940 and R13203-488-5060) from Low Density Residential to Medium
Density Residential.

6. TELECOMMUNICATION INFRASTRUCTURE – Public Meeting
The Federal Communications Commission (FCC) approved revised requirements for
local review and approval for collocation, removal, and replacement of wireless facilities.
Staff will present these requirements and how they will impact existing regulations
included in Title 19 of the Oak Harbor Municipal Code.

7. 2016 COMPREHENSIVE PLAN UPDATE – Workshop
Staff will provide an update on the progress of the 2016 Comprehensive Plan Update.
The major scope of the 2016 Comprehensive Plan Update includes updates to the Land
Use Element, Housing Element and the Transportation Element.  The Planning
Commission will discuss and explore possible changes to the Future Land Use Map.

2

Page 163

Page 133

Page 42

Page 34

Page 18

Page 4





MINUTES 

June 23, 2015 

3





Planning Commission 
June 23, 2015 

Page 1 of 4 

PLANNING COMMISSION 
REGULAR MEETING 
CITY HALL – COUNCIL CHAMBERS 
June 23, 2015 

ROLL CALL:  Present: Greg Wasinger, Bruce Freeman, Ana Schlecht, Cecil Pierce and Jes 
Walker-Wyse 
Absent: Sandi Peterson and Mike Piccone  
Staff Present:  Development Services Director, Steve Powers; Senior Planners, 
Cac Kamak and Dennis Lefevre; Associate Planner Ray Lindenburg  

Chairman Wasinger called the meeting to order at 7:30 p.m. 

MINUTES: MS. SCHLECHT MOVED, MS. WALKER-WYSE SECONDED, MOTION 
CARRIED TO APPROVE THE MAY 26, 2015 MINUTES AS PRESENTED. 

PUBLIC COMMENT 
None.  

HOMELESS ENCAPMENT CODE AMENDMENT – Public Hearing 
Mr. Lefevre reviewed the background, formulation and review process of the homeless 
encampment regulations. Mr. Lefevre noted that the City Council recommended that the radius 
around a public transit stop should be ¾ mile versus ½ mile.   

Planning Commission Discussion  
Planning Commission asked if there was a reason for the ½ mile radius around a public transit 
stop.  Mr. Lefefre said that the discussion with the City Council related to the paratransit ¾ 
radius through the ADA Program.   

Chairman Wasinger opened the public hearing. 

Cynthia Hart (North Whidbey Homeless Project) stated that she had reviewed the draft and her 
only concern was the population that they are hoping to help have criminal backgrounds and will 
not pass a background check which means that they are still on the streets.  She stated that she 
didn’t have an answer at this point but thought that this should be addressed. 

Planning Commissioners discussed Ms. Hart’s comment and noted that the background checks 
were specifically to cull out sex offenders and those who have warrants and not all criminal 
backgrounds. 

Jill Johnson (Island County Commissioner) asked for clarification about the ¾ mile radius and 
noted that Island County Public Health is the health department for all of Island County including 
the City of Oak Harbor.  She anticipated that if there are homeless encampments there would 
be future conversations about enforcement and how it relates to public health.  

Planning Commissioners asked if there were any problems with enforcement of public health 
standards in other cities.  Mr. Powers stated that the city lacks the authority to bind another 
agency (Island County Public Health Department) and the homeless encampment will be 
required to demonstrate consistency with the appropriate public health standards. At this point 
we will monitor how the code works and if changes are needed we will establish different 
standards. 

4



Planning Commission 
June 23, 2015 

Page 2 of 4 

Nexis Alinsky (Food Forest) spoke in favor of the homeless encampment code. 

Planning Commissioners asked if there was a need to include estimated number of homeless in 
the beginning of the ordinance since that number fluctuates.  Mr. Powers said that the number 
was intended to demonstrate the need. 

Chairman Wasinger closed the public hearing. 

MOTION: MR. PIERCE MOVED, MR. FREEMAN SECONDED, MOTION CARRIED TO 
RECOMMEND THAT THE CITY COUNCIL APPROVE ORDINACE 1712 AS 
WRITTEN.  

ZONING CODE AMENDMENT – Public Hearing 
Mr. Powers reported that this amendment was recommended by the Washington Cities 
Insurance Authority (WCIA) to update the definitions of ‘child day care center’ and ‘family day 
care provider’ to be consistent with current state law. They also recommended that the definition 
of ‘family’ be updated and a ‘reasonable accommodation’ section to be added to the code. 

Chairman Wasinger opened the public hearing for public comment. Seeing none, Chairman 
Wasinger closed the public hearing. 

Planning Commissioners asked when the ordinance was originally established with the original 
definitions and where the new language comes from. Mr. Powers said the definition of “family” 
has been in the code since he has been with the city (17 years).  The “child day care center” 
was updated about 13 or 14 years ago to change the number of kids from 6 to 8 and then to 12.  
Mr. Powers said the definitions came straight out of the Washington Administrative Code (WAC) 
and the “family” definition was provided by the City Attorney.  The simplest most straight-forward 
language was chosen for reasonable accommodation. 

MOTION: MS. WALKER-WYSE MOVED, MS. SCHLECHT SECONDED, MOTION 
CARRIED TO RECOMMEND THAT THE CITY COUNCIL APPROVE 
ORDINACE 1739 AS WRITTEN.  

MEDICAL MARIJUANA CODE – Public Meeting 
Mr. Lefevre displayed a PowerPoint presentation (Attachment 1) and discussed the state and 
federal medical marijuana background, current moratorium ordinances and recreational 
marijuana ordinance that the city has adopted and the land use implications of the code.  Mr. 
displayed the following table to illustrate the land use implications. 

Legislation Recreational Medical 

I-502 (2012) 1,000 feet from public places Does not apply 

19.22, OHMC 
(2014)  

1,000 feet from public places; only in PIP & I 
zones (production & process); C-4 & I zones 
(retailers). Retailers must be 1,000 feet from 
producers & processors.  

Does not apply 

2SSB 5052 
(2015) 

Does not apply 
1,000 feet from public places; 
Cooperatives must be 1 mile 
from licensed retailer.  

5



Planning Commission 
June 23, 2015 

Page 3 of 4 

Mr. Lefevre also displayed maps showing the city and what the 1,000 foot buffer looks like when 
applied. 

Mr. Lefevre asked the Planning Commission to discuss what restriction would be appropriate for 
medical marijuana producers, processors and retailers and what can/should we do with 
cooperatives.  Mr. Lefevre also offered the following options:  

1. Separate medical marijuana chapter in OHMC;
2. Combine recreational & medical regs. In OHMC;
3. Continue moratorium & monitor state/other jurisdictions

Planning Commission Discussion 
The Planning Commissioners asked if there were any medical marijuana facilities in the city. 
Mr. Lefevre indicated that there were no medical marijuana facilities in the city.   

There was some discussion about the recreational facilities in the city and questions about 
enforcement/inspections for cooperatives.  

Planning Commission asked whether any jurisdictions that said “no” to medical marijuana.  Mr. 
Lefevre said that he hadn’t found any. There was a question about whether there was a 
mandate to allow medical marijuana.  Mr. Powers indicated that the courts have held that even 
though there is legislation at the state level that would allow recreational marijuana to be 
established in your community, local communities have the ability to make that local choice and 
say “no” if they choose. Now people are wondering if that same parallel will exist for the medical 
marijuana regulation.   

Planning Commissioners asked if extending the moratorium would have any effect on whether 
people register and form cooperatives within the city limits.  Mr. Lefevre explained that 
cooperatives won’t come into being until July 1, 2016.  Mr. Powers said the benefit of the state 
establishing an effective date for the cooperatives was to give us time to make the transition.  
The reason we would extend the moratorium on collective gardens is to see if there is guidance 
coming from the organizations that we look to such as the Association of Washington Cities 
(AWC) and the Municipal Research and Services Center (MRSC).  

Planning Commissioners asked what staffs thoughts are about combining recreational and 
medical regulations in the code.  Mr. Lefever indicated there were a lot of parallels and he would 
be in favor of combining the two.  Mr. Powers also stated he was leaning toward combining the 
two.  

Planning Commissioners indicated that they would like more information on cooperatives and 
see some support from the community.  Mr. Power indicated that they could do some outreach. 
Planning Commissioners noted concern about the “moving target” created by the state actions. 
Planning Commissioners asked if there were any applications.  Mr. Powers said there were 
none.   

Planning Commissioners indicated that they would like more information and would likely 
recommend an extension of the moratorium.  

2016 COMPREHENSIVE PLAN UPDATE – Public Meeting 
Mr. Kamak displayed a PowerPoint presentation (Attachment 2) which presented a review of the 
Land Use Element and items discussed at the June 17th Planning Commission workshop which 

6



 

Planning Commission 
June 23, 2015 

Page 4 of 4 

included a reviewed each goal of the Land Use Element, discussion of its intent, initial thoughts, 
potential policies to further the particular goal and compared the element against the existing 
policies.  The Planning Commission found that the goals seem repetitive, intent not clearly 
captured in some statements, goals and policies seem to have a gap, needs to be restructured 
and there was also discuss as to whether some of the goals apply City-wide versus area 
specific. 
 
Mr. Kamak indicated that the next steps would be to address Growth Management Act (GMA) 
requirements, make a strong connection to the Vision, categorize the goals, ensure that policies 
support existing code, bridge gap between existing codes and expecting goal and that policies 
promote the goal.  
 
Planning Commissioners commented that the workshop was helpful and that another workshop 
was appropriate. 
   
ADJOURN: 8:52 p.m. 
 
Minutes submitted by: Katherine Gifford 

7



ATTACHMENT 1

Medical Marijuana Medical Marijuana 
RegulationsRegulations  
Code Amendment 

Planning Commission 

6/23/2015 

Background 

State & Federal positioning 

Current Ordinances 

Moratorium & Chapter 19.22, OHMC 

Existing Land Use Implications 

Discussion/Direction  

Medical MarijuanaMedical Marijuana  

6/23/2015 Planning Commission 2 

8



ATTACHMENT 1 

Background: 
 1998 – Medical Use of Marijuana Act (I-692 = 69.51A RCW)

permitted med. use of mari. by qualifying patients 
 2011 – Amends MUMA to MUCA (E2SSB 5073)

authorized comp regulatory scheme, database, collective gardens, local 
regulation 

 Federal response to E2SSB 5073
WA state employees (DOH) not immune 
Gregoire veto of key sections 

 2012 – I-502 legalized recreational use of marijuana
regulatory system (Liquor Control Board), producer/processor/retailer licenses, 
operational standards, conformance w/distance & local regs. Required 

 Federal response – Cole Memo (2013)

Medical MarijuanaMedical Marijuana  

6/23/2015 Planning Commission 3 

Background: 
 2015 – Cannabis Patient Protection Act (2ESSB 5052);

 Changes Liquor Control Board to Liquor Cannabis Board;

 Creates similar regulatory framework (recreational);

 Database (qualifying patient protection);

 Recreational marijuana (P,P & R’s) may be endorsed;

 Collective gardens repealed (7/1/16);

 Cooperatives permitted (7/1/16)

Medical MarijuanaMedical Marijuana  

6/23/2015 Planning Commission 4 

9



ATTACHMENT 1 

Current Oak Harbor Ordinances: 

 Ordinance 1685 – Created Chapter 19.22 OHMC (Marijuana
Related Uses) Addresses recreational use only.

 Ordinance 1666 – 6-month moratorium (med. mari.
dispensaries/collective gardens (to 3/2014);

 Ordinance 1686 – Extends moratorium 6 months (to 9/2014);

 Ordinance 1692 – Extends moratorium 12-months (to
9/2015).

Medical MarijuanaMedical Marijuana  

6/23/2015 Planning Commission 5 

Existing Land Use Implications: 

Medical MarijuanaMedical Marijuana  

6/23/2015 Planning Commission 6 

Legislation Recreational Medical 

I-502 (2012) 1,000 feet from public places Does not apply 

19.22, OHMC 

(2014) 

1,000 feet from public places; only in 

PIP & I zones (production & process); C-

4 & I zones (retailers). Retailers must 

be 1,000 feet from producers & 

processors. 

Does not apply 

2SSB 5052 

(2015) 
Does not apply 

1,000 feet from public 

places; Cooperatives must 

be 1 mile from licensed 

retailer. 

10



ATTACHMENT 1 

Map 1 

Medical MarijuanaMedical Marijuana  

6/23/2015 Planning Commission 7 

Map 2 

Medical MarijuanaMedical Marijuana  

6/23/2015 Planning Commission 8 

11



ATTACHMENT 1 

Discussion: 

What restrictions would be appropriate for medical
marijuana producers, processors, & retailers?

What can/should we do with cooperatives?

Options:

 Separate medical marijuana chapter in OHMC;

 Combine recreational & medical regs. In OHMC;

 Continue moratorium & monitor state/other jurisdictions

Medical MarijuanaMedical Marijuana  

6/23/2015 Planning Commission 9 

12



2016 Comprehensive Plan 
Update 

Land Use Element 

Planning Commission 

7/21/2015 

• Land Use Element
• Parks, Recreation and Open Space Element

• Housing Element
• Utilities Element

• Transportation Element
• Economic Development

• Urban Growth Areas
• Environment Element

• Capital Facilities
• Government Services Element

• Community Coordination

Oak Harbor’s Comprehensive Plan 

7/21/2015 Planning Commission 2 

• Establishes the future growth of the City through
population projections and demographic needs

• Systematic assessment of land potential – need for
various districts and the basis for Land Use
designations and zoning regulations

• Goals and Policies to regulate the physical
development of land, neighborhoods and planning
areas

A typical Land Use Element 

7/21/2015 Planning Commission 3 

• The Canadian Institute of Planners offers a definition that 
land-use planning means the scientific, aesthetic, and orderly 
disposition of land, resources, facilities and services with a 
view to securing the physical, economic and social efficiency, 
health and well-being of urban and rural communities 

• The American Planning Association states that the goal of 
land-use planning is to further the welfare of people and 
their communities by creating convenient, equitable, 
healthful, efficient, and attractive environments for present 
and future generations

A typical Land Use Element 

7/21/2015 Planning Commission 4 

ATTACHMENT 2

13

http://en.wikipedia.org/wiki/Canadian_Institute_of_Planners


ATTACHMENT 2

Land Use Element 

A quick review of the existing element 

7/21/2015 Planning Commission 5 

• Introduction
• Relationship to other Elements
• Distribution, Location and Extent of Land Uses
• Existing Conditions

• Land Use Mix
• Residential Uses

• Commercial Uses
• Industrial Uses

• Public/Institutional uses
• Military Uses

Existing Structure 

7/21/2015 Planning Commission 6 

• Economic and Demographic Projection

• Population

• Existing and projected employment

• Housing need projection

• Future

• Land Use needs

• Land Uses – All existing land use categories and

special planning areas

Existing Structure 

7/21/2015 Planning Commission 7 

• Goals and Policies
• CWPP

• JPA
• Potential 

• City of Oak Harbor Goals and Policies
• Community Identity
• Residential Development
• Industrial Development
• Commercial Development
• Public Facilities
• Parks and Recreation
• Essential Public Facilities
• Property Rights
• Built Environment

Existing Structure 

7/21/2015 Planning Commission 8 

14



Existing Element 

ᵼ Good description of the trend 
ᵼ Snapshot statistics on 

population and employment 
ᵼ Delineated 6 neighborhoods 
ᵼ Land use comparisons to 

similar communities 
ᵼ Description of general land 

uses 
ᵼ Some projections 
ᵼ Description of land use 

categories 
ᵼ Goals are general  

– Lack of overall direction
– No connecting statements to the vision
– No statement of findings with existing 

conditions 
– Neighborhoods did not serve an 

extended function – no goals or
defining direction 

– Not clear why general land use 
categories and Future Land Use map 
categories 

– Not clear how the broad categories for
land use goals were selected

– Intent of the goals do not seem clear
– Policies don’t seem to be furthering the 

goal as stated 

7/21/2015 Planning Commission 9 

• Reviewed each goal of the Land Use Element

• Discussed its intent

• Discussed initial thoughts

• Potential policies to further the particular goal

• Compared it against the existing policies

June 17, 2015 Workshop 

7/21/2015 Planning Commission 10 

• Example – Goal 1 - To respect the "small town" heritage of Oak 
Harbor while enhancing the unique character of its 
neighborhoods and districts with development that is fitting with
the City’s future as a regional center. 

June 17, 2015 Workshop 

7/21/2015 Planning Commission 11 

Staff:  

• 3 diff statements

• Small town? DT

• Regional center – retail, 

services

• Transportation 

• Unique Character - DG

PC:  

• Dutch, Windmill, tulips

• Marine/Nautical 

• Applies to different areas

• Seems conflicting 

• Design guidelines 

Current Plan:  

• Pedestrian character

• Streetscape

• Less auto oriented

• DG – pedestrian related

• Sign standards

• Revitalize DT

• Example – Goal 2 - To retain the character and visual identity of 
the Oak Harbor area. 

June 17, 2015 Workshop 

7/21/2015 Planning Commission 12 

Staff:  

• Connected to Goal 1

• Backdrop views, windmill 

• Windjammer Park

• Mix of arch types

• Waterfront Trail 

• Landmarks

PC:  

• Dutch, Windmill, tulips

• Same as Goal 1

• Marine, nautical 

• Churches and homes

• Views 

• Jets, displays, Navy

Current Plan:  

• PRDs

• View Corridors

• Landscape ordinance 

ATTACHMENT 2

15



• Findings

• Goals seem repetitive

• Intent not clearly captured in some statements

• Goals and policies seem to have a gap

• Needs to be restructured

• City-wide vs area specific

June 17, 2015 Workshop 

7/21/2015 Planning Commission 13 

• Guidelines for reorganization
• Address the requirements of the GMA

• Establish a strong connection to the Vision
• Categorization of the goals

• City-wide vs area specific
• Strong connections to the Vision statement
• Simplify the language and make clear statements
• Organize the goals to further the Vision
• Relevant to the Element
• Avoid redundancy

• Policies 
• Support existing code
• Bridge gap between existing codes and expecting goal
• Policies to promote the goal.

2016 Update – next steps 

7/21/2015 Planning Commission 14 

ATTACHMENT 2

16





SIX YEAR 

TRANSPORTATION 

IMPROVEMENT 

PROGRAM 

2016-2021 

Public Hearing 

17





Page 1 of 2 

Date: July 28, 2015 

Subject:  Six-Year Transportation 

 Improvement Program 

FROM: Cathy Rosen, Public Works Director 

Joe Stowell, City Engineer 

PURPOSE:   

The Planning Commission is requested to hold a public hearing for the Oak Harbor 2016-2021 

Six-Year Transportation Improvement Program (TIP) and make a recommendation to the City 

Council for consideration and adoption. 

AUTHORITY: 

The City is authorized and required to adopt a Six-Year Transportation Improvement Program 

and forward the program to the State of Washington in accordance with RCW 35.77.010. 

DISCUSSION 

The City is required by State law to submit an approved Six-Year Transportation Improvement 

Program (TIP).  The primary purpose of the TIP is to facilitate use of Federal transportation 

funds awarded to the City.  Projects that have Federal funding must appear in the Six-Year TIP at 

the local and State level so that the City can obligate and eventually use the Federal funds to 

reimburse the City for specific projects.  

The projects listed on the TIP are coordinated with those listed in the Transportation Element of 

the Comprehensive Plan. Coordinating projects among the Transportation Comprehensive Plan, 

the Six-Year TIP, and the Capital Facilities Plan facilitates our collaboration with other agencies 

and work with utility companies, and our communication with the public on planned 

transportation projects. It also helps the City remain focused on a manageable list of 

transportation projects.   

The Six-Year TIP form includes a number of codes and symbols used in the statewide 

management of the regional TIP documents.  A copy of the TIP code key is attached.  A symbol 

in the status column of “S” means funding is secured while a symbol of “P” indicates the project 

is not currently funded.  The form of the Six-Year TIP includes a priority number associated with 

each project.  Please note that the priority numbering in the TIP is not intended to supersede or 

be superimposed into the citywide effort of overall capital project prioritization.   

The following projects are included in the TIP: 

1. SW Heller Street Improvements – Swantown to Whidbey

2. Whidbey Avenue Reconstruction – Heller to Regatta

City of Oak Harbor 

Planning Commission 

18



Page 2 of 2 

3. Midway / NE 7
th

 – Intersection Signalization

4. Bayshore Drive Extension – Beeksma to City Beach

5. SR-20 Improvements – Roundabouts

6. NW Heller Street Overlay – Whidbey to Crosby

Five previously listed projects have been dropped from the TIP. The Transportation Element 

Update was removed from the project list as the Federal Highway Administration determined 

that local transportation planning is not eligible for federal Surface Transportation Program 

funding. The Whidbey Avenue Pedestrian Crossing and Waterfront Trail Repair projects are 

removed from the TIP because federal funds have been obligated for both projects. The Eagle 

Vista Extension was dropped because there is no longer a timely public interest in this street 

segment. The SE 4
th

 Avenue Reconstruction project is not eligible for federal transportation

funds. 

The Bayshore Drive Extension has been added to the TIP this year. It is classified as collector 

street and is eligible for federal funding and the development of the Oak Harbor Clean Water 

Facility may result in completion of Bayshore Drive between City Beach Street and Beeksma 

Drive. 

As was previously noted, the City is required by State law to submit an approved Six-Year TIP.  

This submittal process is accomplished in conjunction with the Regional Transportation Planning 

Organization (RTPO).  Once approved by the Council, the City’s TIP is submitted to the RTPO.  

In turn, the RTPO submits a regional TIP to the State each year.  The State then prepares a 

statewide TIP in January of each year.  The incorporation of the City’s projects into this 

statewide TIP is what enables Oak Harbor to spend Federal funds on local transportation 

projects. 

RECOMMENDED ACTION: 

1. Conduct a public hearing.

2. Recommend that the City Council adopt the 2016-2021 Six-Year Transportation

Improvement Program.

ATTACHMENTS: 
 Six-Year Transportation Improvement Program (TIP)

 TIP code key from WSDOT

 Map of improvement locations

19



Agency: Oak Harbor

County: Island

MPO/RTPO: Skagit Island 
RTPO

N Inside Y Outside

Functional
C

lass

Priority N
um

ber

A. PIN/Project No.
C. Project Title
D. Road Name or Number
E. Begin & End Termini
F. Project Description

B. STIP ID

G. Structure ID

H
earing

A
dopted

A
m

endm
ent

R
esolution N

o.

Im
provem

ent Type

U
tility C

odes

Total Length

Environm
ental Type

R
W

 R
equired

16 1 WA-05970 06/23/15 07/07/15 15- 04  C G O P S 
T W

0.780 CE Yes

SW Heller Street Improvements

SW Heller Street

SW Swantown Ave to W Whidbey Ave

R/W Acq., pave, curb, gutter, sidewalk, utilities, transit

Funding

Status Phase Phase Start Year (YYYY) Federal Fund Code Federal Funds State Fund Code State Funds Local Funds Total Funds

P PE 2018 0 0 1,358,000 1,358,000

P RW 2019 0 0 582,000 582,000

P CN 2020 0 0 7,760,000 7,760,000

Totals 0 0 9,700,000 9,700,000

Expenditure Schedule

Phase 1st 2nd 3rd 4th 5th & 6th

PE 0 0 0 700,000 658,000

RW 0 0 0 0 582,000

CN 0 0 0 0 7,760,000

Totals 0 0 0 700,000 9,000,000

Report Date: July 21, 2015 Page 1

Six Year Transportation Improvement Program
From 2016 to 2021

20



Agency: Oak Harbor

County: Island

MPO/RTPO: Skagit Island 
RTPO

N Inside Y Outside

Functional
C

lass

Priority N
um

ber

A. PIN/Project No.
C. Project Title
D. Road Name or Number
E. Begin & End Termini
F. Project Description

B. STIP ID

G. Structure ID

H
earing

A
dopted

A
m

endm
ent

R
esolution N

o.

Im
provem

ent Type

U
tility C

odes

Total Length

Environm
ental Type

R
W

 R
equired

16 2    WA-05971 06/23/15 07/07/15         15- 03  C G P T W 1.800 CE No

Whidbey Avenue Reconstruction

Whidbey Avenue

Heller St to Regatta Dr

Sidewalk, curb & gutter, drainage, transit facilities, non-motorized

Funding

Status Phase Phase Start Year (YYYY) Federal Fund Code Federal Funds State Fund Code State Funds Local Funds Total Funds

P PE 2018 0 0 1,428,000 1,428,000

P RW 2019 0 0 204,000 204,000

P CN 2020 0 0 8,568,000 8,568,000

Totals 0 0 10,200,000 10,200,000

Expenditure Schedule

Phase 1st 2nd 3rd 4th 5th & 6th

PE 0 1,000,000 428,000 0 0

RW 0 0 204,000 0 0

CN 0 0 0 8,568,000 0

Totals 0 1,000,000 632,000 8,568,000 0

Report Date: July 21, 2015 Page 2

Six Year Transportation Improvement Program
From 2016 to 2021

21



Agency: Oak Harbor

County: Island

MPO/RTPO: Skagit Island 
RTPO

N Inside Y Outside

Functional
C

lass

Priority N
um

ber

A. PIN/Project No.
C. Project Title
D. Road Name or Number
E. Begin & End Termini
F. Project Description

B. STIP ID

G. Structure ID

H
earing

A
dopted

A
m

endm
ent

R
esolution N

o.

Im
provem

ent Type

U
tility C

odes

Total Length

Environm
ental Type

R
W

 R
equired

16 3 WA-05972 06/23/15 07/07/15 15- 03  C G O P S 
T W

CE No

Midway Blvd / NE 7th Ave Intersection Signalization

NE Midway Blvd

 to 

Traffic Signal

Funding

Status Phase Phase Start Year (YYYY) Federal Fund Code Federal Funds State Fund Code State Funds Local Funds Total Funds

P PE 2017 0 0 170,153 170,153

P RW 2018 0 0 113,435 113,435

P CN 2019 0 0 850,762 850,762

Totals 0 0 1,134,350 1,134,350

Expenditure Schedule

Phase 1st 2nd 3rd 4th 5th & 6th

PE 0 170,153 0 0 0

RW 0 0 113,435 0 0

CN 0 0 0 850,762 0

Totals 0 170,153 113,435 850,762 0

Report Date: July 21, 2015 Page 3

Six Year Transportation Improvement Program
From 2016 to 2021

22



Agency: Oak Harbor

County: Island

MPO/RTPO: Skagit Island 
RTPO

N Inside Y Outside

Functional
C

lass

Priority N
um

ber

A. PIN/Project No.
C. Project Title
D. Road Name or Number
E. Begin & End Termini
F. Project Description

B. STIP ID

G. Structure ID

H
earing

A
dopted

A
m

endm
ent

R
esolution N

o.

Im
provem

ent Type

U
tility C

odes

Total Length

Environm
ental Type

R
W

 R
equired

17 4    WA-08159 07/28/15 08/05/15         01  C G P T W 0.270 Yes

Bayshore Drive Extension

SE Bayshore Drive

SW Beeksma Drive to SE City Beach Street

Street Extension

Funding

Status Phase Phase Start Year (YYYY) Federal Fund Code Federal Funds State Fund Code State Funds Local Funds Total Funds

P PE 2017 0 0 490,000 490,000

P RW 2018 0 0 1,000,000 1,000,000

P CN 2019 STP 1,000,000 0 1,010,000 2,010,000

Totals 1,000,000 0 2,500,000 3,500,000

Expenditure Schedule

Phase 1st 2nd 3rd 4th 5th & 6th

PE 0 290,000 200,000 0 0

RW 0 0 1,000,000 0 0

CN 0 0 0 2,010,000 0

Totals 0 290,000 1,200,000 2,010,000 0

Report Date: July 21, 2015 Page 4

Six Year Transportation Improvement Program
From 2016 to 2021

23



Agency: Oak Harbor

County: Island

MPO/RTPO: Skagit Island 
RTPO

N Inside Y Outside

Functional
C

lass

Priority N
um

ber

A. PIN/Project No.
C. Project Title
D. Road Name or Number
E. Begin & End Termini
F. Project Description

B. STIP ID

G. Structure ID

H
earing

A
dopted

A
m

endm
ent

R
esolution N

o.

Im
provem

ent Type

U
tility C

odes

Total Length

Environm
ental Type

R
W

 R
equired

14 5 WA-05976 06/05/15 07/07/15 15- 03  C G O P S 
T W

0.690 CE Yes

SR-20 Improvement

SR-20

SE Barrington Dr to SW Swantown Ave

R/W Acq., intersection improvements & channelization, widening, sidewalk, curb &
gutter, retaining walls, & landscaping.

Funding

Status Phase Phase Start Year (YYYY) Federal Fund Code Federal Funds State Fund Code State Funds Local Funds Total Funds

P PE 2020 0 WSDOT 3,572,000 268,000 3,840,000

P RW 2021 0 WSDOT 5,952,000 448,000 6,400,000

P CN 2021 0 WSDOT 20,236,800 1,523,200 21,760,000

Totals 0 29,760,800 2,239,200 32,000,000

Expenditure Schedule

Phase 1st 2nd 3rd 4th 5th & 6th

PE 0 0 0 0 3,840,000

RW 0 0 0 0 6,400,000

CN 0 0 0 0 21,760,000

Totals 0 0 0 0 32,000,000

Report Date: July 21, 2015 Page 5

Six Year Transportation Improvement Program
From 2016 to 2021

24



Agency: Oak Harbor

County: Island

MPO/RTPO: Skagit Island 
RTPO

N Inside Y Outside

Functional
C

lass

Priority N
um

ber

A. PIN/Project No.
C. Project Title
D. Road Name or Number
E. Begin & End Termini
F. Project Description

B. STIP ID

G. Structure ID

H
earing

A
dopted

A
m

endm
ent

R
esolution N

o.

Im
provem

ent Type

U
tility C

odes

Total Length

Environm
ental Type

R
W

 R
equired

16 6    WA-07425 06/23/15 07/07/15         15- 06  C G P S T 
W

0.600 CE No

NW Heller Street Overlay

NW Heller St.

W. Whidbey Ave. to NW Crosby Ave.

Overlay surface for maintenance; replace curb ramps; striping.

Funding

Status Phase Phase Start Year (YYYY) Federal Fund Code Federal Funds State Fund Code State Funds Local Funds Total Funds

S PE 2016 STP(R) 31,192 0 4,868 36,060

S CN 2017 STP(R) 280,727 0 43,813 324,540

Totals 311,919 0 48,681 360,600

Expenditure Schedule

Phase 1st 2nd 3rd 4th 5th & 6th

PE 0 0 36,060 0 0

CN 0 0 0 324,540 0

Totals 0 0 36,060 324,540 0

Federal Funds State Funds Local Funds Total Funds

Grand Totals for Oak Harbor 1,311,919 29,760,800 25,822,231 56,894,950

Report Date: July 21, 2015 Page 6

Six Year Transportation Improvement Program
From 2016 to 2021

25



71 

APPENDIX A 

 IMPROVEMENT TYPE CODES 

01 – New Construction Roadway 

03 – Reconstruction, Added Capacity 

04 – Reconstruction, No Added Capacity 

05 – 4R Maintenance Resurfacing 

06 – 4R Maintenance – Restoration & Rehabilitation 

07 – 4R Maintenance – Relocation 

08 – Bridge, New Construction 

10 – Bridge Replacement, Added Capacity 

11 – Bridge Replacement, No Added Capacity 

13 – Bridge Rehabilitation, Added Capacity 

14 – Bridge Rehabilitation, No Added Capacity 

15 – Preliminary Engineering 

16 – Right of Way 

17 – Construction Engineering 

18 – Planning 

19 – Research 

20 – Environmental Only 

21 – Safety 

22 – Rail/Highway Crossing 

23 – Transit 

24 – Traffic Management/Engineering – HOV 

26



72 

 

APPENDIX A (continued) 

      IMPROVEMENT TYPE CODES 

25 – Vehicle Weight Enforcement Program 

26 – Ferry Boats 

27 – Administration 

28 – Facilities for Pedestrians and Bicycles 

29 – Acquisition of Scenic Easements and Scenic or Historic Sites 

30 – Scenic or Historic Highway Programs 

31 – Landscaping and Other Scenic Beautification 

32 – Historic Preservation 

33 – Rehab & Operation of Historic Transp. Buildings, Structures, Facilities 

34 – Preservation of Abandoned Railway Corridors 

35 – Control and Removal of Outdoor Advertising 

36 – Archaeological Planning & Research 

37 – Mitigation of Water Pollution due to Highway Runoff 

38 – Safety and Education for Pedestrians/Bicyclists 

39 – Establishment of Transportation Museums 

40 – Special Bridge 

41 – Youth Conservation Service  

42 – Training 

43 – Utilities 

44 – Other 

45 – Debt Service  

47 – Systematic Preventive Maintenance                                                                                        
  

27



73 

APPENDIX B 

 FEDERAL FUNCTIONAL CLASSIFICATIONS 

 No Functional Classification 

 < 5,000 Population > 5,000 Population 

 Interstate Rural Interstate Urban 

Principal Arterial Rural Freeways & Expressways Urban 

 Minor Arterial Rural  Other Principal Arterials Urban 

Major Collector Rural Minor Arterial Urban  

Minor Collector Rural Collector Urban 

Local Access Rural Local Access Urban 

28





74 

APPENDIX C 

 FEDERAL FUND CODES 

5307 FTA Urbanized Area Formula Program 

5309(Bus) FTA Bus and Bus Facilities 

5309(FG) FTA Fixed Guideway Modernization 

5309(NS) FTA New Starts 

5310 FTA Elderly Persons and Persons with Disabilities 

5311 FTA Rural Area Formula Grants 

5316 FTA Job Access & Reverse Commute Program 
(JARC) 

5317 FTA New Freedom Program 

FTA Discretionary Discretionary Programs such as Alternatives Analysis 
(5339) and TIGGER Program 

BIA Bureau of Indian Affairs 

BR Bridge Replacement/Rehabilitation Program 

CBI Coordinated Border Infrastructure 

CDBG Community Development Block Grant (Dept. of 
Commerce) 

CMAQ Congestion Mitigation and Air Quality 

DEMO Demonstration Projects (High Priority, Sect. 112, 115, 
117, 125 and 129) 

Discretionary – FBD  Ferry Boat Discretionary 

Discretionary – IMD Interstate Maintenance Discretionary 

Discretionary – ITS intelligent Transportation Systems 

Discretionary – PLH  Public Lands Highways (Federal Lands) 

Discretionary – SB Scenic Byways 

Discretionary – STP  Surface Transportation Priorities 

29



75 

 

                  APPENDIX C (continued) 

                            FEDERAL FUND CODES  

 

Discretionary – TCSP Transportation, Community & System Preservation    
Program 

DOD Department of Defense 

FMSIB Freight Mobility Strategic Investment  Board 

IM Interstate Maintenance 

IRR Indian Reservation Roads 

NHS National Highway System 

SRTS Safe Routes to Schools 

STP Surface Transportation Program (WSDOT Use Only) 

STP(E) Surface Trans. Program -  Enhancements 

STP(L) Surface Trans. Program – Legislative Earmarks 

 

STP(S) Surface Trans. Program – Safety (Includes Highway 
Safety Improvement Program, Hazard Elimination, 
Railway/Highway Crossing Program and 2010-15 
County Road Safety Program) 

STP(R) Surface Trans. Program – Rural Regionally Selected 

STP(U) Surface Trans. Program – Urban Regionally Selected 

 

 

 

 

 

 

30



76 

APPENDIX C (continued) 

STATE FUND CODES 

CRAB County Road Administration Board 

FMSIB Freight Mobility Strategic Investment Board 

PWTF  Public Works Trust Fund 

SRTS  Safe Routes to Schools 

TIB Transportation Improvement Board 

TPP  Transportation Partnerships Program 

WSDOT WSDOT funds 

OTHER Any other state funds not listed a 

31





32

ctaylor
Text Box
ATTACHMENT 3





MEDICAL 

MARIJUANA 

CODE 

Public Meeting 

33





1 

Date: July 28, 2015 

Subject: 2SSB 5052 – Medical Marijuana 

FROM: Dennis Lefevre, AICP, Senior Planner 

PURPOSE 

This report is a follow-up to the June 23, 2015 discussion regarding the creation of a code 

amendment in the Oak Harbor Municipal Code (OHMC) addressing impacts of the recently 

passed Cannabis Patient Protection Act (2SSB 5052).  

BACKGROUND 

The City of Oak Harbor adopted Ordinance 1685 (February 2014) creating Chapter 19.22, 

OHMC, regulating the potential siting of recreational marijuana production, processing and retail 

facilities legalized by the passage of I-502 in November 2012. 

With the knowledge that the Washington State Legislature was working towards legislation that 

could potentially align the medical marijuana regulations with those of recreational marijuana, 

the City Council adopted Ordinance No. 1666 (September 3, 2013) instituting a six-month 

moratorium on the establishment, licensing, and permitting of medical marijuana dispensaries 

and collective gardens. 

Since no Legislative action occurred within the six-month time period established under 

Ordinance No. 1666, the City Council adopted Ordinance No. 1686 extending the moratorium an 

additional six months, to September 2, 2014. The State Legislature, again, failed to pass 

legislation changing the medical marijuana laws within the extended six-month time frame 

prompting the City Council to adopt Ordinance No. 1692. This Ordinance extended the 

moratorium an additional twelve months to September 2, 2015 and established a work plan to 

develop a medical marijuana ordinance. 

In April 2015, Governor Inslee signed the Cannabis Patient Protection Act (2SSB 5052) which 

overhauls regulation of the medical marijuana industry. This legislation brings medical marijuana 

into the same regulatory scheme that the Liquor Cannabis Board (formerly Liquor Control 

Board) had established for recreational marijuana under I-502. 

DISCUSSION 

At the June 23, 2015 Planning Commission meeting, staff presented the background of the 

marijuana industry in Washington State, existing regulatory conditions for recreational 

marijuana, and framework for medical marijuana regulations established under 2SSB 5052. 

Following substantive discussion, there was general consensus that, due to uncertainty of several 

sections of 2SSB 5052 and the very short timeframe to prepare a code amendment locally 

regulating medical marijuana, an extension to the existing moratorium would be in the best 

interest of the city. The Planning Commission further indicated that such an extension would 

City of Oak Harbor 

Planning Commission Report 

34



2 

provide an opportunity to gather additional information, monitor state progress and 2SSB 5052 

refinements, and engage in public outreach. 

Staff supports the Planning Commission position. While the bill provides a needed regulatory 

framework for the medical marijuana industry, it contains areas of uncertainty and unanswered 

questions.  It is staff’s belief that legislation as widespread as this will experience areas of 

refinement and clarification. Other Washington jurisdictions will share similar concerns in the 

lack of regulatory control and enforcement mechanisms. Time will be needed to monitor the 

aforementioned concerns to ensure that the proposed code amendment will reflect the most 

recent legislative and judicial decisions. 

RECOMMENDATION 

Staff’s recommendation is to forward a recommendation to the City Council to extend the 

existing medical marijuana moratorium extended under Ordinance No. 1692 an additional year to 

September 1, 2016. 

ATTACHMENTS 

Attachment 1 – Proposed Ordinance ___ 

35



Draft Ordinance ____ Page 1 of 5 

ORDINANCE NO. _____ 

AN ORDINANCE OF THE CITY OF OAK HARBOR, WASHINGTON, 

EXTENDING FOR TWELVE MONTHS THE MORATORIUM UPON 

MEDICAL MARIJUANA DISPENSARIES AND COLLECTIVE GARDENS 

AS ESTABLISHED BY ORDINANCE NO. 1666 AND AMENDED BY 

ORDINANCE NOS. 1686 AND 1692, ADOPTING FINDINGS OF FACT IN 

SUPPORT OF THE EXTENSION, ADOPTING A REVISED WORKPLAN, 

PROVIDING FOR SEVERABILITY, AND ESTABLISHING AN 

EFFECTIVE DATE. 

WHEREAS, Initiative Measure No. 692 (I-692), approved by the voters of Washington State on 

November 30, 1998, and now codified as chapter 69.51A RCW, created an affirmative defense 

for “qualifying patients” to the charge of possession of marijuana (cannabis); and, 

WHEREAS, the intent of I-692 was that qualifying “patients with terminal or debilitating 

illnesses who, in the judgment of their physicians, would benefit from the medical use of 

marijuana, shall not be found guilty of a crime under state law” (RCW 69.51A.005), but that 

nothing in the law “shall be construed to superseded Washington state law prohibiting the 

acquisition, possession, manufacture, sale, or use of marijuana for non-medical purposes” (RCW 

69.51A.020); and, 

WHEREAS, the Washington State Legislature passed E2SSB 5073 in 2011; and, 

WHEREAS, on April 29, 2011, former Governor Christine Gregoire vetoed all of the provisions 

of E2SSB 5073 relevant to medical marijuana dispensaries but left the provisions relating to 

cultivation of marijuana for medical use by qualified patients individually and in collective 

gardens; and, 

WHEREAS, RCW 69.51A.085 authorizes qualifying patients “to create and participate in 

collective gardens for the purpose of producing, processing, transporting, and delivering 

cannabis for medical use,”; and, 

WHEREAS, RCW 69.51A.140 authorizes cities to adopt and enforce zoning requirements, 

business licensing requirements, health and safety requirements, and business taxes pertaining to 

the production, processing, or dispensing of cannabis or cannabis products within their 

jurisdiction and that nothing in chapter 181, Laws of 2011 is intended to limit the authority of 

cities to impose zoning requirements or other conditions upon licensed dispensers, so long as 

such requirements do not preclude the possibility of siting licensed dispensers within the 

jurisdiction; and, 

WHEREAS, Initiative Measure No. 502 (I-502), approved by the voters of Washington state on 

November 6, 2012, calls for the establishment of a regulatory system licensing producers, 

processors, and retailers of recreational marijuana for adults 21 years of age and older, legalizes 

the possession and private recreational use of marijuana, and requires the Washington State 

ATTACHMENT 1

36



Draft Ordinance ____ Page 2 of 5 

Liquor and Cannabis Board (formerly Liquor Control Board) to adopt procedures and criteria for 

issuing licenses to produce, process, and sell marijuana; and, 

WHEREAS, the City of Oak Harbor adopted Ordinance No. 1666 on September 3, 2013 

imposing a six-month moratorium on the establishment of medical marijuana dispensaries and 

collective gardens because of the potential impact on the public health, safety, and welfare; and, 

WHEREAS, the City Council conducted a public hearing on October 1, 2013, as required by 

Ordinance No. 1666, to take public testimony regarding the establishment of the moratorium; 

and, 

WHEREAS, the City has received no evidence that there is insufficient access to medical 

marijuana; and, 

WHEREAS, the Washington State Attorney General issued an advisory opinion in January 

2014, that states municipalities can prohibit state-licensed marijuana businesses within a city’s 

boundaries or impose zoning and other land use regulations pertaining to such businesses; and, 

WHEREAS, legislation was introduced in the Washington State Legislature’s 2014 session 

concerning recreational, commercial, and medical marijuana, which would have merged medical 

marijuana into the state-licensed recreational market; and, 

WHEREAS, in light of the potential for new legislation related to medical marijuana and in 

accordance with RCW 36.70A.390, Ordinance No. 1666, adopted September 3, 2013, was 

extended by the City Council (Ordinance No. 1686) for an additional six months until September 

2, 2014, subject to general compliance with a work plan; and, 

WHEREAS, the Legislature failed to act on the bills, leaving the laws regarding medical 

marijuana regulations unchanged; and, 

WHEREAS, the Court of Appeals affirmed a city’s right to prohibit collective gardens in 

Cannabis Action Coalition v. City of Kent; and, 

WHEREAS, City staff outlined a work plan based on the anticipated Legislative session 

schedule; and, 

WHEREAS, the City determined that an additional twelve months was necessary to allow for 

passage of state Legislation and implementation of the city’s work plan; and, 

WHEREAS, on September 2, 2014, following a public hearing, the City Council adopted 

Ordinance No. 1692 extending the moratorium for an additional twelve months until September 

2, 2015; and, 

WHEREAS, on April 25, 2015 the Washington State Legislature passed 2SSB 5052 establishing 

the Cannabis Patient Protection Act; and, 

ATTACHMENT 1

37



Draft Ordinance ____ Page 3 of 5 

WHEREAS, the Cannabis Patient Protection Act provides a similar regulatory framework 

created under I-502 to be administered by the Liquor and Cannabis Board; and, 

WHEREAS, the Cannabis Patient Protection Act creates a medical marijuana authorization 

database for qualifying patients; provides potential endorsement to a licensed recreational 

marijuana retailer to carry products identified by the Washington Department of Health as 

beneficial to medical marijuana patients; repeals the authorization for collective gardens, 

effective July 1, 2016; and, authorizes the establishment of four-member cooperatives also 

effective July 1, 2016; and, 

WHEREAS, on June 23, 2015 City staff presented the medical marijuana framework created 

under the Cannabis Patient Protection Act, to the City of Oak Harbor Planning Commission; and, 

WHEREAS, City staff also presented an aggressive, revised work plan intended to create and 

adopt medical marijuana regulations within the City by the expiration of the moratorium 

established under Ordinance No. 1692; and, 

WHEREAS, discussion at the June 23, 2015 Planning Commission meeting involved concerns 

about preparing local medical marijuana regulations while the state may refine and clarify 

uncertain sections of the Cannabis Patient Protection Act possibly requiring supplemental local 

code amendments; and, 

WHEREAS, the Planning Commission also reasoned that additional time would be valuable to 

solicit public comment and perception to this issue as well as provide an opportunity to monitor 

other communities; and, 

WHEREAS, a City Council workshop was held on July 22, 2015 to discuss the medical 

marijuana framework and the Planning Commission concerns and direction; and, 

WHEREAS, the Planning Commission continued their discussion of local medical marijuana 

regulations and unanimously recommended to the City Council approval of Ordinance ___, 

extending the duration of the moratorium extended under Ordinance 1692 an additional twelve 

months to September 1, 2016 along with a revised work plan; and 

WHEREAS, a public hearing was held on September 1, 2015, to receive and consider public 

testimony regarding an extension to the moratorium; and, 

WHEREAS, the City Council finds that it is necessary to extend the duration of the moratorium 

as established by Ordinance No. 1666 and as amended by Ordinances No. 1686 and 1692 for an 

additional twelve months; and, 

WHEREAS, the City Council adopts the foregoing as its findings of facts justifying the 

adoption of this ordinance; 

NOW, THEREFORE, the City Council of the City of Oak Harbor, Washington do ordain as 

follows: 

ATTACHMENT 1

38



Draft Ordinance ____ Page 4 of 5 

Section One.  Extension of Moratorium. In accordance with RCW 36.70A.390, Ordinance No. 

1666, adopted September 3, 2013, which imposed a moratorium on the establishment of medical 

marijuana dispensaries and collective gardens for six months, as amended by Ordinance No. 

1686 which extended the moratorium another six months subject to compliance with a work 

plan, as further amended by Ordinance No. 1692 which extended the moratorium twelve months 

is hereby extended for an additional twelve months until September 1, 2016, subject to general 

compliance with the revised work plan shown in Section Two below. 

Section Two.  Revised Work Plan. The work plan shown below represents a revised work plan 

as adopted in Section Two of Ordinance No. 1692. 

August 2015 – March 2016  Monitor amendments and new bills

pertaining to medical marijuana

 Monitor direction provided by AWC,

MRSC, and review actions taken by peer

communities

 Facilitate open house to receive public

comment

 Initiate draft medical marijuana code

March – May 2016  Planning Commission conducts public

hearing(s) and forwards recommendations

to City Council

June 2016  Provide 60-day notification to Commerce

 Complete SEPA process

June – July 2016  City Council workshop(s)

August – September 2016  City Council public hearing(s)

Section Three.  Severability. If any provision this Ordinance or its application to any person or 

circumstance is held invalid, the remainder of the Ordinance or the application of the provision 

to other persons or circumstances is not affected. 

Section Four.  Effective Date. This Ordinance shall be in full force and effect five (5) days after 

publishing. 

ATTACHMENT 1

39



Draft Ordinance ____ Page 5 of 5 

PASSED by the City Council this ______day of ________, 2015. 

CITY OF OAK HARBOR 

____________________ 

SCOTT DUDLEY, MAYOR 

Attest: Approved as to form: 

By ___________________________ By ___________________________ 

      Anna Thompson, City Clerk Nikki Esparza, City Attorney 

Date of Publication: _______________ 

Effective Date: ______________ 

ATTACHMENT 1

40





COMPREHENSIVE PLAN 

LAND USE 

AMENDMENT 

Public Hearing 

41





CITY OF OAK HARBOR PLANNING COMMISSION 

TO: PLANNING COMMISSION 

FROM: CAC KAMAK, SENIOR PLANNER 

SUBJECT: COMPREHENSIVE PLAN AMENDMENT - LAND USE CHANGE – 185 SW 

3RD AVENUE AND ADJACENT PARCELS (R13203-488-4830, R13203-348-

4940 AND R13203-488-5060) 

DATE: JULY 27, 2015 

CC: STEVE POWERS, DEVELOPMENT SERVICES DIRECTOR 

PURPOSE: 

This memo addresses the land use change requested by Valley High Investments Incorporated for 

three properties located south of SW 3
rd

 Avenue and west of Oak Harbor Road (Attachment 1).  

The request was made as part of the 2015 Comprehensive Plan Amendment process.     

PROCESS: 

The process to amend the Comprehensive Plan is regulated by OHMC Chapter 18.15.  This land 

use amendment was added to the preliminary docket in 2015 as a sponsored amendment and 

approved by the City Council on March 3, 2015.  Public notification on the project will be in 

accordance to the requirements set forth in OHMC Section 18.20.380(5).  The land use change 

along with the other comprehensive plan amendments will be reviewed by the applicable criteria 

established under OHMC Section 18.15.080.   

BACKGROUND 

Valley High Investments Incorporated owns two properties along SW 3
rd

 Avenue.  One property 

(185 SW 3
rd

 Ave) has a single family residence on it, and the other is vacant.  The properties are 

each approximately 44,000 square feet in area and are substantially larger than the 7,200 square 

feet minimum lot size requirements in the current R-1 Single Family Residential District.  Valley 

High Investments Incorporated believes that these properties can be developed to a higher density 

and has therefore requested a land use change.  To the east of the properties owned by Valley 

High Investments is a single parcel owned by the Oak Harbor School District (OHSD) that is also 

currently vacant of structures and has an access road into the Oak Harbor Middle School.  The 

OHSD does not have any change in plans for their property, however, Valley High Investments 

Incorporated has included the property in the requested change since it creates a better transition 

to the High Density Residential designated along Oak Harbor Road to the east (see attachment 2 

Land Use Map).  The OHSD is aware of Valley High Investments request for the land use change 

and is not opposed to their inclusion in this amendment (see Attachment 3 – letter). 

DISCUSSION 

Site Characteristics 

The properties are mostly flat and are devoid of any sudden slope changes. As mentioned above, 

there is a single family residence on the western most property of the three included in the 

request.  The property to the west is a church (Assembly of God), and the church’s parsonage is 

adjacent to the single family residence on the applicant’s property. To the north and across the 

street is also a church (First Reformed Church).  To the east, the properties are developed with 

42



2 
 

multifamily residential structures along Oak Harbor Road.  Oak Harbor Middle School lies south 

of the subject properties.  

 

Sewer and water are available to the properties from SW 3
rd

 Avenue.  SW 3
rd

 Avenue is primarily 

a two lane asphalt street with ditches on either side for drainage.  The south side of SW 3
rd

 Ave 

has sidewalks on the south side adjacent to the property.   

 

 
 

 

Review Criteria 

OHMC Section 18.15.080 establishes the criteria to review annual amendments to the 

Comprehensive Plan were the criteria are applicable.  The criteria and their review are provided 

below. 

 

(1) The amendment will not adversely affect the public health, safety and welfare in any 

significant way. 

The amendment requested will increase the allowed density of the property from 3-6 

units per acre to 3-12 units per acre.  This increase in density is not uncharacteristic of 

this area that has high density residential uses immediately adjacent to the east.  The other 

uses surrounding the properties are two churches and a school which would be minimally 

impacted from the increased density.  The proposed amendment and increase in density is 

well suited to take advantage of the utilities and services that are adjacent to these 

properties.  Therefore, the proposed amendment will not adversely affect the public 

43



3 

health, safety and welfare. 

(2) The proposed amendment is consistent with the overall goals and intent of the 

comprehensive plan. 

The proposed change will allow a higher density residential development in this area.  

This change is supported by goals and policies in the Comprehensive Plan that support 

infill development and encourage a mix of housing types.  This location is served by city 

utilities and is near many services such as retail, groceries, home improvement stores, 

schools etc.  The location also serves as an ideal transition from high density to the east to 

low density to the west.  The location for this change is further enhanced due to the 

location of churches adjacent to the subject properties that provide a break and a 

transition from the subject properties to other low density residential uses to the west.      

(3) The amendment is in compliance with the Growth Management Act and the countywide 

planning policies. 

The proposed change to the land use designation does not create any inconsistencies with 

the Growth Management Act or the County Wide Planning Policies.  In fact, it is 

supported by the Act and the CWPP that support infill development and higher densities 

where infrastructure is already available.   

(4) The amendment addresses the needs or changing circumstances of the community as a 

whole or resolves inconsistencies in the city’s comprehensive plan. 

The amendment does not resolve any inconsistencies.  However, the amendment can be 

seen as addressing the needs of changing circumstances because by supporting higher 

densities within the city limits where urban services are already available, it reduces the 

need for seeking land in the fringes of the city where utilities need to be extended.  It is 

fair to say that increasing the density, where appropriate, within the city is generally a 

better option than seeking UGA boundary changes and is highly encouraged by GMA 

and the CWPP.  

(5) Environmental impacts from the amendments have been addressed through SEPA review 

and/or measures have been included that reduce possible impacts. 

There are no immediate environmental impacts from the land use change.  However, 

development of the property will need to meet the requirements of Oak Harbor’s 

Municipal Code and may require a SEPA review.  Any impacts can be addressed at the 

time of development.  Since similar uses are accommodated in both designations, 

environmental impacts will not be significantly different due to the change. 

(6) The amendment is consistent with the land uses and growth projections which were the 

basis of the comprehensive plan or to subsequent updates to growth allocations. 

The proposed amendment to increase the density is consistent with land use and growth 

projections.  The City is aware that NAS Whidbey will have an increase in personal due 

to the increase in squadrons.  Therefore, increasing the density in areas where services are 

available will help with providing additional housing options for the increase in 

population. 

44



4 
 

(7) The amendment is generally compatible with neighboring land uses and surrounding 

neighborhoods. 

The proposed amendment is compatible with the neighboring land uses and creates a 

good transition from the high density multifamily uses to the east to the low density 

residential uses to the west.  The transitions are further enhanced with location of 

churches adjacent to the subject properties.   

 

(8) The proposed amendment accommodates new policy direction from the city council.  

This is not applicable for this change since it does not address a new policy direction. 

 

(9) Other specific criteria that may have been identified at the beginning of the process.  

 Not applicable. 

 

From the above review, it can be determined that there will not likely be adverse impacts from 

changing the land use designations for the property from Low Density Residential to Medium 

Density Residential.    

 

RECOMMENDATION 

 Conduct Public Hearing 

 Recommend amending the Future Land Use Map designation for the subject properties 

from Low Density Residential to Medium Density Residential. 

 

ATTACHMENTS 

1. Location Map 

2. Land Use Map 

3. OHSD Letter 

4. Application 

5. Notice to Adjacent Property Owners 

45



Ha
wth

orn
e P

ark

SR 20

SW
 3R

D A
VE

W 
WH

IDB
EY

 AV
E

SW
 6T

H A
VE

SW FAIRHAVEN DR

SW
 1S

T A
VE

SW DYER ST

S OAK HARBOR ST

SW
 4T

H A
VE SWERIEST

SE
 3R

D A
VEE W

HID
BE

Y A
VE

SW
 2N

D A
VE SW

 EC
HO

 LO
OP

SE ATLAS ST

SW CRUISE ST

SW ER I E
CI

R

SW DISCOVERY ST

SW ESTON CT

SW FESTIVAL CT

NWBOSUNST

SW
 6T

H A
VE

SW
 6T

H A
VE

SW
 2N

D A
VE

0
25

0
50

0
12

5
Fe

et

µ

Va
lle

y H
igh

 In
ve

stm
en

t P
rop

ert
ies

Va
lle

y H
igh

 In
ve

stm
en

t P
rop

ert
ies

OH
SD

 Pr
op

ert
y

Proposed Land Use Change ATTACHMENT 1

46





ATTACHMENT 2

47





ATTACHMENT 3

48





ATTACHMENT 4

49



50



51



52



53



54



55



56



57



58



59



60



61



62



63



64



65



66



67



68



69



70



71



72



73



74



75



76



77



78



79



80



81



82



83



84



85



86



87



88



89



90



91



92



93



94



95



96



97



98



99



100



101



102



103



104



105



106



107



108



109



110



111



112



113



114



115



116



117



118



119



120



121



122



123



124



125



126



127





ATTACHMENT 5

128



129



130



131



TELECOMMUNICATION 

INFRASTRUCTURE 

Public Meeting 

132





1 

Date: July 28, 2015 

Subject: Eligible Facilities Modifications 

– Code Amendment

FROM: Dennis Lefevre, AICP, Senior Planner 

PURPOSE 

This report initiates the discussion on a proposed new code section establishing an application 

submittal and approval process for collocation, removal, and replacement of wireless 

transmission facilities.  

BACKGROUND 

In 2012 the US Congress passed the “Middle Class Tax Relief and Job Creation Act of 2012”. 

Section 6409 of this Act (a.k.a. the “Spectrum Act”) has mandated that “local governments 

approve, and cannot deny, an application requesting modification of an existing tower or base 

station if such modification does not substantially change the physical dimensions of such tower 

or base station.” The purpose of this act is to facilitate and expedite the deployment of equipment 

and infrastructure to meet the demand for wireless capacity. Attachment 1 provides the full text 

of Section 6409. An amendment to the Oak Harbor Municipal Code (OHMC) is necessary to 

accommodate the Spectrum Act’s requirements. This amendment is anticipated to create a new 

Chapter (19.30) in the OHMC titled “Eligible Facilities Modifications.” 

DISCUSSION 

Chapter 19.29, OHMC (Wireless Communications Facilities – Attachment 2) establishes 

locations and options for wireless facilities including: micro facilities
1
; mini facilities

2
; monopole

I
3
; and monopoles II

4
. Chapter 19.29 focuses primarily on the construction of new facilities,

while this chapter permits collocation of wireless facilities on existing structures, it does not 

provide an expedited application and review process nor provide for mandatory approval if 

specific criterion are met. 

Creation of Chapter 19.30 is a legislative action and is consistent with goals and policies 

established in the City of Oak Harbor Comprehensive Plan (November 2014) and serves to 

implement Utilities Goal 2: Process permit requests for utilities in a fair and timely manner to 

ensure predictability and Utilities Policy 2d.: The City should review and amend existing 

regulations as necessary to provide clear and objective standards for maintenance, repair, 

installation and replacement of utilities. Such changes shall be consistent with other Goals and 

Policies of the Comprehensive Plan for construction practices, restoration of City 

property/right-of-way, environmental protection and oak tree preservation. 

1
 A micro facility is an attached wireless communication facility which consists of antennas equal to or less than four feet in 

height and with an area not more than 580 square inches. 
2 A mini facility is an attached wireless communication facility which consists of antennas equal to or less than 10 feet in height 

and with an area not more than 50 square feet. 
3
 A monopole I is a wireless communications facility which consists of a support structure (maximum 60 feet in height) and 

antenna equal to or less than 15 feet in height. 
4 A monopole II is a wireless communication facility which consists of a support structure (maximum 150 feet in height) and 

antenna equal to or less than 15 feet in height. 

City of Oak Harbor 

Planning Commission Report 

133



2 

This expedited review is contingent upon the determination that the modification does not 

substantially change the physical dimensions of such tower or base station. Substantially change 

is defined as: 

a) The proposed facilities modification would not increase the height of the eligible

support structure by more than ten percent (10%), or twenty (20) feet, whichever is 

greater; or 

b) The mounting of equipment that would involve adding an appurtenance to the body of

the eligible support structure would not protrude from the edge of the structure more than 

twenty (20) feet, or more than the width of the structure at the level of the appurtenance, 

whichever is greater. 

A modification meeting these criteria is also exempt from the requirements of the State 

Environmental Policy Act (RCW 43.21C.0384). 

This amendment establishes application submittal requirements, permit classification, timing for 

permit review, and the approval process. Following adoption of this amendment, Development 

Services staff will prepare an application based on the new Chapter 19.30 guidelines and 

requirements. Staff will also amend Schedule A of the Master Fee Schedule to include this 

application and review fee. The proposed Chapter 19.30 is Attachment 3.  

The following steps represent a proposed schedule for this code amendment: 

8/3 60-day notification to Dept. of Commerce 

8/21 SEPA preparation 

8/26 CC Workshop 

8/28 Notice of Application 

9/2 Legal in WNT 

9/18 14-day comment period closes 

9/22 PC Public Hearing 

10/5 Appeal window closes 

10/6 CC Public Hearing/Adoption 

RECOMMENDATION 

This item is for information and discussion only.  No action is required. 

ATTACHMENTS 

1. Section 6409 of the Spectrum Act

2. Chapter 19.29, OHMC, Wireless Communications Facilities

3. Proposed Chapter 19.30, OHMC

134



Attachment 1 

47 USC 1455.  

SEC. 6409. WIRELESS FACILITIES DEPLOYMENT. 

§ 1455. Wireless facilities deployment

(a) FACILITY MODIFICATIONS.— 

(1) In General - Notwithstanding section 704 of the Telecommunications Act of  1996 

(Public Law 104–104) or any other provision of law, a State or local government  may not deny, 

and shall approve, any eligible facilities request for a modification of an  existing wireless 

tower or base station that does not substantially change the physical  dimensions of such 

tower or base station. 

(2) Eligible Facilities Request - For purposes of this subsection, the term “eligible 

facilities request” means any request for modification of an existing wireless tower or 

base station that involves: 

(A) collocation of new transmission equipment; 

(B) removal of transmission equipment; or 

(C) replacement of transmission equipment. 

(3) Applicability of Environmental Laws - Nothing in paragraph (1) shall be construed to 

relieve the Commission from the requirements of the National Historic Preservation Act 

or the National Environmental Policy Act of 1969. 

(b) FEDERAL EASEMENTS AND RIGHTS-OF-WAY 

(1) Grant - If an executive agency, a State, a political subdivision or agency of a State, or 

a person, firm, or organization applies for the grant of an easement or right-of-way to, in, 

over, or on a building or other property owned by the Federal Government for the right to 

install, construct, and maintain wireless service antenna structures and equipment and 

backhaul transmission equipment, the executive agency having control of the building or 

other property may grant to the applicant, on behalf of the Federal Government, an 

easement or right-of-way to perform such installation, construction, and maintenance. 

(2) Application - The Administrator of General Services shall develop a common form 

for applications for easements and rights-of-way under paragraph (1) for all executive 

agencies that shall be used by applicants with respect to the buildings or other property of 

each such agency. 

(3) Fee 

(A) In general, notwithstanding any other provision of law, the Administrator of  

General Services shall establish a fee for the grant of an easement or right-of-way 

pursuant to paragraph (1) that is based on direct cost recovery. 

(B) Exceptions - The Administrator of General Services may establish exceptions 

to the fee amount required under subparagraph (A)— 

(i) in consideration of the public benefit provided by a grant of an 

easement or right-of-way; and 

ATTACHMENT 1

135



Attachment 1 

(ii) in the interest of expanding wireless and broadband coverage. 

(4) Use of fees collected - Any fee amounts collected by an executive agency pursuant to 

paragraph (3) may be made available, as provided in appropriations Acts, to such agency 

to cover the costs of granting the easement or right-of-way. 

(c) MASTER CONTRACTS FOR WIRELESS FACILITY SITINGS 

(1) In general - notwithstanding section 704 of the Telecommunications Act of 1996 or 

any other provision of law, and not later than 60 days after February 22, 2012, the 

Administrator of General Services shall— 

(A) Develop 1 or more master contracts that shall govern the placement of  

wireless service antenna structures on buildings and other property owned by the  

Federal Government; and 

(B) In developing the master contract or contracts, standardize the treatment of  

the placement of wireless service antenna structures on building rooftops or  

facades, the placement of wireless service antenna equipment on rooftops or  

inside buildings, the technology used in connection with wireless service antenna 

structures or equipment placed on Federal buildings and other property, and any  

other key issues the Administrator of General Services considers appropriate. 

(2) Applicability - The master contract or contracts developed by the Administrator of 

General Services under paragraph (1) shall apply to all publicly accessible buildings and 

other property owned by the Federal Government, unless the Administrator of General 

Services decides that issues with respect to the siting of a wireless service antenna 

structure on a specific building or other property warrant nonstandard treatment of such 

building or other property. 

(3) Application - The Administrator of General Services shall develop a common form or 

set of forms for wireless service antenna structure siting applications under this 

subsection for all executive agencies that shall be used by applicants with respect to the 

buildings and other property of each such agency. 

(d) EXECUTIVE AGENCY DEFINED - In this section, the term ‘‘executive agency’’ has the 

meaning given such term in section 102 of title 40. 

(Pub. L. 112–96, title VI, § 6409, Feb. 22, 2012, 126 

Stat. 232.) 

ATTACHMENT 1

136



Attachment 2 

Chapter 19.29 

WIRELESS COMMUNICATIONS FACILITIES 

Sections: 

19.29.010    Purpose. 

19.29.020    Development standards for micro facilities. 

19.29.030    Development standards for mini facilities. 

19.29.040    Development standards for macro facilities. 

19.29.050    Development standards for monopole I. 

19.29.060    Development standards for monopole II. 

19.29.070    Additional permit criteria for monopole I and monopole II. 

19.29.080    Exemption. 

19.29.090    Obsolescence. 

19.29.010 Purpose. 

In addition to the general purposes of the comprehensive plan and this title, this chapter is 

included in order to provide for a wide range of locations and options for wireless 

communications providers while minimizing the unsightly characteristics associated with 

wireless communications facilities and to encourage creative approaches in locating wireless 

communications facilities which will blend in with the surroundings of such facilities. (Ord. 

1555 § 12, 2009). 

19.29.020 Development standards for micro facilities. 

(1) Micro facilities are permitted in all zones. 

(2) A micro facility shall be located on existing buildings, poles or other existing support 

structures. A micro facility may locate on buildings and structures; provided, that the interior 

wall or ceiling immediately adjacent to the facility is not designated residential space. 

(3) Antennas equal to or less than four feet in height (except omni-directional antennas which 

can be up to six feet in height) and with an area of not more than 580 square inches in the 

aggregate (e.g., one-foot diameter parabola or two-foot by one-and-one-half-foot panel as viewed 

from any one point) are exempt from the height limitation of the zone in which they are located. 

Structures which are nonconforming with respect to height may be used for the placement of 

omni-directional antennas providing they do not extend more than six feet above the existing 

structure. Placement of an antenna on a nonconforming structure shall not be considered to be an 

expansion of the nonconforming structure. 

(4) The micro facility shall be exempt from design review if the antenna and related components 

are the same color as the existing building, pole or support structure on which it is proposed to be 

located. 

(5) The shelter or cabinet used to house radio electronic equipment shall be contained wholly 

within a building or structure, or otherwise appropriately concealed, camouflaged or located 

underground. 

ATTACHMENT 2

137



Attachment 2 

(6) In single-family residential (PRE, R-1 and R-2) zones, micro facilities for a specific wireless 

provider shall be separated by a distance equal to or greater than 1,320 linear feet from other 

micro facilities of the same wireless provider. (Ord. 1555 § 12, 2009). 

19.29.030 Development standards for mini facilities. 

(1) Mini facilities are permitted in all zones except single-family residential (PRE, R-1 and R-2) 

zones. 

(2) The mini facility may be located on buildings and structures; provided, that the immediate 

interior wall or ceiling adjacent to the facility is not a designated residential space. 

(3) The mini facility shall be exempt from design review if the antenna and related components 

are the same color as the existing building, pole or support structure on which it is proposed to be 

located. 

(4) The shelter or cabinet used to house radio electronic equipment shall be contained wholly 

within a building or structure, or otherwise appropriately concealed, camouflaged or located 

underground. 

(5) Mini facilities shall comply with the height limitation specified for all zones except as 

follows: Omni-directional antennas may exceed the height limitation by 10 feet or, in the case of 

nonconforming structures, the antennas may extend 10 feet above the existing structure. Panel 

antennas may exceed the height limitation if affixed to the side of an existing nonconforming 

building and they blend in architecturally with the building. Placement of an antenna on a 

nonconforming structure shall not be considered to be an expansion of the nonconforming 

structure. (Ord. 1555 § 12, 2009). 

19.29.040 Development standards for macro facilities. 

(1) Macro facilities are permitted in all zones except single-family residential (PRE, R-1 and R-

2) zones.

(2) Macro facilities may be located on buildings and structures; provided, that the immediate 

interior wall or ceiling adjacent to the facility is not a designated residential space. 

(3) The macro facility shall be exempt from design review if the antenna and related components 

are the same color as the existing building, pole or support structure on which it is proposed to be 

located. 

(4) The shelter or cabinet used to house radio electronic equipment shall be contained wholly 

within a building or structure, or otherwise appropriately concealed, camouflaged or located 

underground. 

(5) Macro facilities shall comply with the height limitation specified for all zones, except as 

follows: Omni-directional antennas may exceed the height limitation by 15 feet, or, in the case of 

nonconforming structures, the antennas may extend 15 feet above the existing structure. Panel 

antennas may exceed the height limitation if affixed to the side of an existing building and 

architecturally blends in with the building. Placement of an antenna on a nonconforming 

ATTACHMENT 2

138



Attachment 2 

structure shall not be considered to be an expansion of the nonconforming structure. (Ord. 1555 

§ 12, 2009).

19.29.050 Development standards for monopole I. 

(1) Monopole I facilities are only permitted in the industrial (I) zone. 

(2) Monopole I facilities are permitted in community commercial (C-3), highway service 

commercial (C-4), highway corridor commercial (C-5), planned business park (PBP), planned 

industrial park (PIP), and public facilities (PF) zones with a conditional use permit. 

(3) Monopole I facilities are not permitted in residential (PRE, R-1, R-2, R-3 and R-4), 

residential office (RO), neighborhood commercial (C-1) or central business district (CBD) zones, 

except when expressly provided for in this chapter. 

(4) Antennas equal to or less than 15 feet in height or up to four inches in diameter may be a 

component of a monopole I facility. Antennas which extend above the wireless communications 

support structure shall not be calculated as part of the height of the monopole I wireless 

communications support structure. For example, the maximum height for a monopole I shall be 

60 feet and the maximum height of antennas which may be installed on the support structure 

could be 15 feet, making the maximum permitted height of the support structure and antennas 75 

feet (60 feet plus 15 feet). 

(5) Co-location on an existing support structure shall be permitted. Macro facilities are the 

largest wireless communications facilities allowed on monopole I. 

(6) The shelter or cabinet used to house radio electronics equipment and the associated cabling 

connecting the equipment shelter or cabinet to the monopole I facilities shall be concealed, 

camouflaged or placed underground. Monopole I facilities shall be subject to review by the 

planning commission using the procedures and review criteria specified in Chapter 19.48 OHMC 

and this chapter. 

(7) Monopole I facilities shall be landscaped in conformance with Chapter 19.46 OHMC. 

(8) Monopole I facilities adjacent to a single-family zone shall be set back a distance equal to the 

height of the wireless communications support structure from the nearest single-family lot line. 

(Ord. 1555 § 12, 2009). 

19.29.060 Development standards for monopole II. 

(1) Monopole II facilities are only permitted in the industrial (I) zone; provided the wireless 

communications support structure shall be designed to accommodate two or more wireless 

communications facilities. 

(2) Monopole II facilities are permitted in highway service commercial (C-4), planned business 

park (PBP), planned industrial park (PIP), and public facilities (PF) zones with a conditional use 

permit. 

ATTACHMENT 2

139



Attachment 2 

(3) Monopole II facilities are not permitted in residential (PRE, R-1, R-2, R-3 and R-4), 

residential office (RO), neighborhood commercial (C-1) or central business district (CBD) zones, 

except when expressly provided for in this chapter. 

(4) Monopole II facilities which exceed 60 feet in height or are located within 300 feet of a 

residential zone shall require a conditional use permit. 

(5) Co-location of wireless communications facilities on an existing support structure shall be 

permitted. 

(6) Macro facilities are the largest permitted wireless communications facilities allowed on a 

monopole II facility. Antennas which extend above the monopole II wireless communications 

support structure shall not be calculated as part of the height of the wireless communications 

support structure. For example, the maximum height for a monopole II facility shall be 150 feet 

and the maximum height of antennas which may be installed on the support structure could be 15 

feet, making the maximum permitted height of the support structure and antennas 165 feet (150 

feet plus 15 feet). 

(7) The shelter or cabinet used to house radio electronics equipment and the associated cabling 

connecting the equipment shelter or cabinet to the monopole I facilities shall be concealed, 

camouflaged or placed underground. Monopole I facilities shall be subject to review by the 

planning commission using the procedures and review criteria specified in Chapter 19.48 OHMC 

and this chapter. 

(8) Monopole II facilities shall be landscaped in conformance with Chapter 19.46 OHMC. 

(9) Monopole II facilities adjacent to a single-family zone shall be set back a distance equal to 

the height of the wireless communications support structure from the nearest single-family lot 

line. 

(10) Monopole II facilities shall be separated from each other by a distance equal or greater than 

1,320 feet. (Ord. 1555 § 12, 2009). 

19.29.070 Additional permit criteria for monopole I and monopole II. 

In addition to the permit criteria specified in Chapters 19.48 and 19.67 OHMC, the following 

specific criteria shall be met before a site plan review or conditional use permit can be granted: 

(1) Antennas may not extend more than 15 feet above their supporting structure, monopole, 

building or other structure. 

(2) Site location and development shall preserve the pre-existing character of the surrounding 

buildings and land uses and the zone district to the extent consistent with the function of the 

communications equipment. Wireless communications towers shall be integrated through 

location and design to blend in with the existing characteristics of the site to the extent practical. 

Existing on-site vegetation shall be preserved or improved, and disturbance of the existing 

topography shall be minimized, unless such disturbance would result in less visual impact of the 

site to the surrounding area. 

ATTACHMENT 2

140



Attachment 2 

(3) Accessory equipment facilities used to house wireless communications equipment should be 

located within buildings or placed underground when possible. When they cannot be located in 

buildings, equipment shelters or cabinets shall be screened and landscaped in conformance with 

Chapter 19.46 OHMC. 

(4) No equipment shall be operated so as to produce noise in levels above 45 dB as measured 

from the nearest property line on which the attached wireless communications facility is located. 

(5) In any proceeding regarding the issuance of site plan review or a conditional use permit under 

the terms of this chapter, federal law prohibits consideration of environmental effects of radio 

frequency emissions to the extent that the proposed facilities comply with the Federal 

Communications Commission regulations concerning such emission. 

(6) Towers, antennas or other objects that penetrate the 100:1 angle slope criteria established in 

Federal Aviation Regulation (FAR) Part 44 (Sections 77.13(a)(1) and 77.13(a)(2)(I), 

respectively) shall be reviewed for compatibility with airport operations. No tower, antenna or 

other object shall constitute a hazard to air navigation, interfere with the safe operation of aircraft 

or deny the existing operational capability of Ault Field. (Ord. 1555 § 12, 2009). 

19.29.080 Exemption. 

The following are exempt from the requirement of a conditional use permit, and shall be 

considered a permitted use in all zones where wireless and attached wireless communications 

facilities are permitted: Minor modifications of existing wireless communications facilities and 

attached wireless communications facilities, whether emergency or routine, so long as there is 

little or no change in the visual appearance. Minor modifications are those modifications, 

including the addition of antennas, to conforming wireless and attached wireless communications 

facilities that meet the performance standards set forth in this chapter. (Ord. 1555 § 12, 2009). 

19.29.090 Obsolescence. 

A wireless communications facility or attached wireless communications facility shall be 

removed by the facility owner within six months of the date it ceases to be operational or if the 

facility falls into disrepair. (Ord. 1555 § 12, 2009). 

ATTACHMENT 2

141





Eligible Facilities Modification 

Ordinance - 1 

ORDINANCE NO. ________ 

AN ORDINANCE OF THE CITY OF OAK HARBOR ADDING A NEW CHAPTER 19.30 TO 

THE OAK HARBOR MUNICIPAL CODE ENTITLED "ELIGIBLE FACILITIES 

MODIFICATIONS" RELATING TO COLLOCATION, REMOVAL AND REPLACEMENT 

OF WIRELESS FACILITIES; ESTABLISHING DEVELOPMENT REGULATIONS FOR 

COLLOCATION, REMOVAL AND REPLACEMENT OF WIRELESS TRANSMISSION 

FACILITIES TO CONFORM TO FEDERAL LAW AND REGULATIONS; ESTABLISHING 

AN APPLICATION SUBMITTAL AND APPROVAL PROCESS; PROVIDING FOR 

TERMINATION OF NON-CONFORMING STRUCTURES; PROVIDING FOR 

SEVERABILITY AND ESTABLISHING AN EFFECTIVE DATE 

WHEREAS, in 1934, Congress enacted the Communications Act of 1934, creating the FCC and 

granting it authority over common carriers engaged in the provision of interstate or foreign 

communications services; and 

WHEREAS, in 1996 Congress enacted Pub. L. No. 104-104, 110 Stat. 70 (the "1996 Act"), 

amending the Communications Act of 1934 and implementing regulations applicable to both 

wireless and wireline communications facilities for the purpose of removal of barriers to entry 

into the telecommunications market while preserving local government zoning authority except 

where specifically limited under the 1996 Act; and 

WHEREAS, in the 1996 Act, Congress imposed substantive and procedural limitations on the 

traditional authority of state and local governments to regulate the location, construction, and 

modification of wireless facilities and incorporated those limitations into the Communications 

Act of 1934; and 

WHEREAS, the City has adopted regulations that have been codified as part of the Municipal 

Code of the City establishing local requirements for the location, construction and modification 

of wireless facilities; and 

WHEREAS, in 2012 Congress passed the "Middle Class Tax Relief and Job Creation Act of 

2012" (the "Spectrum Act") (PL-112-96; codified at 47 U.S.C. §1455(a)); and 

WHEREAS, Section 6409 (hereafter "Section 6409") of the Spectrum Act implements additional 

substantive and procedural limitations upon state and local government authority to regulate 

modification of existing wireless antenna support structures and base stations; and 

WHEREAS, Congress through its enactment of Section 6409 of the Spectrum Act has mandated 

that local governments approve, and cannot deny, an application requesting modification of an 

existing tower or base station if such modification does not substantially change the physical 

dimensions of such tower or base station; and 

WHEREAS, the 1996 Act empowers the Federal Communications Commission (the "FCC") to 

prescribe such rules and regulations as may be necessary in the public interest to carry out the 

ATTACHMENT 3

142



Eligible Facilities Modification 

Ordinance - 2 

provisions of the 1996 Act and subsequently added portions of the 1996 Act such as Section 

6409; and 

WHEREAS, the FCC, pursuant to its rule making authority, adopted and released a Notice of 

Proposed Rulemaking in September of 2013 (in re Acceleration of Broadband Deployment by 

Improving Wireless Facilities Siting Policies, WT Docket Nos. 13-238, 13-32; WC Docket No. 

11-59; FCC 13-122) which focused in part upon whether or not the FCC should adopt rules 

regarding implementation of Section 6409; and 

WHEREAS, on October 21, 2014, the FCC issued its report and order, WT Docket Nos. 13-238, 

13-32; WC Docket No. 11-59; FCC 14-153, in the above-described proceeding (the "Report and 

Order" or "Order") clarifying and implementing statutory requirements related to state and local 

government review of infrastructure siting, including Section 6409, with the intent of facilitating 

and expediting the deployment of equipment and infrastructure to meet the demand for wireless 

capacity; and 

WHEREAS, the rules adopted by the FCC in its Report and Order implementing Section 6409 

are intended by the FCC to spur wireless broadband deployment, in part, by facilitating the 

sharing of infrastructure that supports wireless communications through incentives to collocate 

on structures that already support wireless facilities; and 

WHEREAS, the Report and Order also adopts measures that update the FCC's review processes 

under the National Environmental Policy Act of 1969 ("NEPA") and section 106 of the National 

Historic Preservation Act of 1966 ("NHPA"), with a particular emphasis on accommodating new 

wireless technologies that use smaller antennas and compact radio equipment to provide mobile 

voice and broadband service; and 

WHEREAS, on January 5, 2015, the FCC released an Erratum to the Report and Order making 

certain amendments to the provisions of the Report and Order related to NEPA and Section 106 

of the NHPA; and 

WHEREAS, that part of the Report and Order related to implementation of Section 6409, 

amends 47 C.F.R. Part 1 (PART 1 – PRACTICE AND PROCEDURE) by adding new Subpart 

CC §1.40001 and establishing both substantive and procedural limitations upon local 

government application and development requirements applicable to proposals for modification 

to an existing antenna support structure or an existing base station ("Eligible Facility Request 

Rules"); and 

WHEREAS, the Order, among other things, defines key terms utilized in Section 6409, 

establishes application requirements limiting the information that can be required from an 

applicant, implements a 60 shot clock and tolling provisions, establishes a deemed approved 

remedy for applications not timely responded to, requires cities to approve a project permit 

application requesting modification of an existing tower or base station that does not 

substantially change the physical dimensions of such tower or base station, and establishes 

development standards that govern such proposed modifications; and 

ATTACHMENT 3

143



Eligible Facilities Modification 

Ordinance - 3 

WHEREAS, the Report and Order provides that the Eligible Facility Request Rules will be 

effective ninety (90) days following publication in the Federal Register; and 

WHEREAS, the Order was published in the Federal Register on Thursday, January 8, 2015, 

Federal Register; Vol. 80; No. 5, resulting in the Eligible Facility Request Rules becoming 

effective on April 8, 2015; and 

WHEREAS, the Order is subject to appeal, however, even if an appeal is filed, the appeal will 

not automatically result in delay of implementation of the Eligible Facility Request Rules; and 

WHEREAS, the City Council finds that it is required under Section 6409 of the Spectrum Act 

and the Eligible Facility Request Rules established in the Order, to adopt and implement local 

development and zoning regulations that are consistent with Section 6409 and the Order; and 

WHEREAS, an Environmental Checklist for a non-project action was prepared under the State 

Environmental Policy Act (RCW Chapter 43.21.C), pursuant to Washington Administrative 

Code Chapter 197-11, and a determination of Non-Significance ("DNS") was issued on the ____ 

day of ________________, _______; and 

WHEREAS, in accordance with RCW 36.70A.106 and WAC 365-196-630, a notice of intent to 

adopt the proposed new development regulations was sent to the State of Washington 

Department of Commerce and to other state agencies to allow for a sixty (60) day review and 

comment period, which comment period ended prior to adoption of this ordinance; and 

WHEREAS, on the _____ day of _________________, _______, the Planning Commission held 

a duly noticed public meeting related to the proposed interim development and zoning 

regulations set forth in the proposed ordinance; and 

WHEREAS; the City Council considered the proposed development and zoning regulations on 

the _____ day of __________________, _______; and 

WHEREAS, the City Council finds that the proposed development and zoning regulations are 

reasonable and necessary in order to bring the City's development regulations into compliance 

with the mandate imposed upon the City by Congress pursuant to Section 6409 and the 

regulations imposed upon the City by the FCC pursuant to its Report and Order, and are 

therefore in the public interest; 

NOW, THEREFORE, THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF OAK HARBOR do ordain as 

follows: 

Section One.  There is hereby added a new Chapter 19.30 entitled "Eligible Facilities 

Modifications" to the Oak Harbor Municipal Code to read as follows: 

ATTACHMENT 3

144



Eligible Facilities Modification 

Ordinance - 4 

CHAPTER 19.30 

ELIGIBLE FACILITIES MODIFICATIONS 

Sections: 

19.30.010 Title 

19.30.020 Adoption of Findings and Conclusions 

19.30.030 Purpose and Intent 

19.30.040 Definitions 

19.30.050 Applicability – Relationship to Other Rules and Regulations 

19.30.060 Permit Classification 

19.30.070 Application Submittal Requirements 

19.30.080 Review of Application; Approval 

19.30.090 Substantial Change Criteria 

19.30.100 Nonconforming Structure; Termination 

19.30.110 Enforcement 

19.30.010  Title.  This chapter shall be known and referred to as the "Eligible Facilities 

Modification Code" or "EFM Code".  Unless the context indicates otherwise, a reference herein 

to "this code" or "this chapter" shall mean and refer to the Eligible Facilities Modification Code. 

19.30.020  Adoption of Findings and Conclusion.  The recitals set forth in the ordinance 

adopting this code are adopted as findings and conclusions of the City Council. 

19.30.030  Purpose and Intent.  The purpose and intent of this chapter are to: 

(1) To implement §6409 of the "Middle Class Tax Relief and Job Creation Act of 2012" (the 

"Spectrum Act") (PL-112-96; codified at 47 U.S.C. §1455(a)) which requires the City to 

approve any eligible facilities request for a modification of an existing tower or base 

station that does not substantially change the physical dimensions of such tower or base 

station; 

(2) To implement the FCC rules set forth at 47 C.F.R. Part 1 (PART 1 – PRACTICE AND 

PROCEDURE) new Subpart CC §1.40001 (Wireless Facility Modifications), which rules 

implement §6409 of the Spectrum Act;  

(3) To establish procedural requirements and substantive criteria applicable to review and 

approval or denial of applications for an eligible facilities modification; 

(4) To ensure that application submittal requirements are related to information reasonably 

necessary to the determination of whether or not the proposed modification will result in 

a substantial change in the physical dimensions of the eligible support structure; 

(5) To exempt facilities modifications approval under this chapter as eligible facilities 

requests from zoning and development regulations that are inconsistent with or 

preempted by Section 6409 of the Spectrum Act; 

ATTACHMENT 3

145



Eligible Facilities Modification 

Ordinance - 5 

(6) To preserve the City's right to continue to enforce and condition approvals under this 

chapter on compliance with generally applicable building, structural, electrical and safety 

codes and with other laws codifying objective standards reasonably related to health and 

safety; 

(7) To promote timely decisions under this chapter; 

(8) To ensure that decisions are made consistently and predictably; 

(9) To incorporate provisions of RCW 43.21C.0384 that exempt eligible facilities 

modifications from review under RCW 43.21C.030(2)(c), (State Environmental Policy 

Act); 

(10) To recognize that Section 6409(a)(1) of the Spectrum Act operates to preempt any 

provision of the State Environmental Policy Act (RCW Ch. 43.21C) to the extent that any 

such provision, including RCW 43.21C.030(2)(c), would prohibit a City from approving 

any eligible facilities request for a modification of an existing wireless tower or base 

station that does not substantially change the physical dimensions of such tower or base 

station; and 

(11) To provide for termination of eligible facilities modifications approved pursuant to this 

chapter, as nonconforming structures in the event that §6409(a) of the Spectrum Act is 

found to be unconstitutional or otherwise determined to be invalid or unenforceable and 

such modifications would otherwise have been in derogation of development regulations 

in place at the time of receipt of a completed application. 

19.30.040  Definitions.  The following definitions shall apply in the interpretation and 

enforcement of this chapter, unless the context clearly requires otherwise.  Any term or phrase 

not defined herein shall have the meaning that is given to that term or phrase in ___________ of 

the Oak Harbor Municipal Code.  When not inconsistent with the context, words used in the 

present tense include the future, words in the plural include the singular, and words in the 

singular include the plural.  The word "shall" is always mandatory and not merely directory and 

the word "may" is always discretionary.  References to governmental entities (whether persons 

or entities) refer to those entities or their successors in authority.  If specific provisions of law, 

regulation or rule referred to herein be renumbered or amended, then the reference shall be read 

to refer to the renumbered or amended provision. 

(1) "Approval authority" is the public official, or designee, who has authority under the Oak 

Harbor Municipal Code to administratively issue project permit approvals. 

(2) "Applicant" shall mean and refer to the person, and such person's successor in interest, 

owning and/or operating the transmission equipment proposed in an eligible facilities 

modification application to be collocated, removed or replaced. 

ATTACHMENT 3

146



Eligible Facilities Modification 

Ordinance - 6 

(3) "Authorized person" is the person, employees, agents, consultants, and contractors, 

authorized in writing by applicant to complete and submit an eligible facilities 

modification application on behalf of applicant and who is authorized to receive any 

notices on behalf of applicant of any action taken by the City regarding the application. 

(4) "Base station" shall mean and refer to the structure or equipment at a fixed location that 

enables wireless communications licensed or authorized by the FCC, between user 

equipment and a communications network.  The term does not encompass a tower as 

defined in this chapter or any equipment associated with a tower. 

(a) The term includes, but is not limited to, equipment associated with wireless 

communications services such as private, broadcast, and public safety services, as 

well as unlicensed wireless services and fixed wireless services such as 

microwave backhaul. 

(b) The term includes, but is not limited to, radio transceivers, antennas, coaxial or 

fiber-optic cable, regular and backup power supplies, and comparable equipment, 

regardless of technological configuration (including Distributed Antenna Systems 

and small-cell networks). 

(c) The term includes any structure other than a tower that, at the time an eligible 

facilities modification application is filed with the City under this chapter, 

supports or houses equipment described in paragraphs (i) – (ii) above, and that has 

been reviewed and approved under the applicable zoning or siting process, or 

under another State, county or local regulatory review process, even if the 

structure was not built for the sole or primary purpose of providing such support. 

(d) The term does not include any structure that, at the time a completed eligible 

facilities modification application is filed with the City under this section, does 

not support or house equipment described in paragraphs (a) – (b) above. 

(5) "City" shall mean and refer to the City of Oak Harbor. 

(6) "City Code" shall mean and refer to the codified ordinances of the City. 

(7) "Collocation" shall mean and refer to the mounting or installation of transmission 

equipment on an eligible support structure for the purpose of transmitting and/or 

receiving radio frequency signals for communications purposes. 

(8) "Conceal" or "Concealment" shall mean and refer to eligible support structures and 

transmission facilities designed to look like some feature other than a wireless tower or 

base station. 

(9) "Deemed approved" shall mean and refer to an eligible facilities modification application 

that has been deemed approved upon the City's failure to act, and has become effective, 

as provided pursuant to the FCC Eligible Facilities Request Rules. 

ATTACHMENT 3

147



Eligible Facilities Modification 

Ordinance - 7 

(10) "Eligible facilities modification application" or "application" shall, unless the context 

clearly requires otherwise, mean and refer to a written document submitted to the City 

pursuant to this chapter for review and approval of a proposed facilities modification. 

(11) "Eligible facilities modification" shall mean and refer to any proposed facilities 

modification that has been determined pursuant to the provisions of this chapter to be 

subject to this chapter and which does not result in a substantial change in the physical 

dimensions of an eligible support structure. 

(12) "Eligible facilities modification permit" or "permit" shall, unless the context clearly 

requires otherwise, mean and refer to a written document issued by the approval authority 

pursuant to this chapter approving an eligible facilities modification application. 

(13) "Eligible support structure" shall mean and refer to any existing tower or base station as 

defined in this chapter, provided that it is in existence at the time the eligible facilities 

modification application is filed with the City under this chapter. 

(14) "Existing" shall, for purpose of this chapter and as applied to a tower or base station, 

mean and refer to a constructed tower or base station that has been reviewed and 

approved under the applicable zoning or siting process of the City, or under another State, 

county or local regulatory review process; provided that, a tower that has not been 

reviewed and approved because it was not in a zoned area when it was built, but was 

lawfully constructed, is existing for purposes of this definition. 

(15) "Proposed facilities modification" shall mean and refer to a proposal submitted by an 

applicant to modify an eligible support structure which the applicant asserts is subject to 

review under Section 6409 of the Spectrum Act, and involving: 

(a) collocation of new transmission equipment; 

(b) removal of transmission equipment; or 

(c) replacement of transmission equipment. 

(16) "FCC" shall mean and refer to the Federal Communications Commission or its successor. 

(17) "FCC Eligible Facilities Request Rules" shall mean and refer to 47 C.F.R. Part 1 (PART 

1 – PRACTICE AND PROCEDURE), Subpart CC §1.40001 as established pursuant to 

its Report and Order in, In re Acceleration of Broadband Deployment by Improving 

Wireless Facilities Siting Policies, WT Docket Nos. 13-238, 13-32; WC Docket No. 11-

59; FCC 14-153, or as may be thereafter amended. 

(18) "Site" shall, for towers other than towers in the public rights-of-way, mean and refer to 

the current boundaries of the leased or owned property surrounding the tower and any 

access or utility easements currently related to the site, and, for other eligible support 

ATTACHMENT 3

148



Eligible Facilities Modification 

Ordinance - 8 

structures, shall mean and be further restricted to, that area in proximity to the structure 

and to other transmission equipment already deployed on the ground. 

(19) "Small cell facility" shall mean and refer to a personal wireless services facility that 

meets both of the following qualifications: 

(a) Each antenna is located inside an antenna enclosure of no more than three (3) 

cubic feet in volume or, in the case of an antenna that has exposed elements, the 

antenna and all of its exposed elements could fit within an imaginary enclosure of 

no more than three (3) cubic feet; and 

(b) Primary equipment enclosures are no larger than seventeen (17) cubic feet in 

volume.  The following associated equipment may be located outside the primary 

equipment enclosure and if so located, are not included in the calculation of 

equipment volume: electric meter, concealment, telecomm demarcation box, 

ground-based enclosures, battery back-up power systems, grounding equipment, 

power transfer switch, and cut-off switch. 

(20) "Small cell network" shall mean and refer to a collection of interrelated small cell 

facilities designed to deliver personal wireless services. 

(21) "Spectrum Act" shall mean and refer to the "Middle Class Tax Relief and Job Creation 

Act of 2012" (Public Law 112-96; codified at 47 U.S.C. §1455(a)). 

(22) "Substantial change criteria" shall mean and refer to the criteria set forth in this chapter at 

OHMC 19.30.090. 

(23) "Transmission Equipment" shall mean and refer to equipment that facilitates transmission 

for any wireless communication service licensed or authorized by the FCC, including, but 

not limited to, radio transceivers, antennas, coaxial or fiber-optic cable, and regular and 

backup power supply.  The term includes equipment associated with wireless 

communications services including, but not limited to, private, broadcast, and public 

safety services, as well as unlicensed wireless services and fixed wireless services such as 

microwave backhaul. 

(24) "Tower" shall mean and refer to any structure built for the sole or primary purpose of 

supporting any antennas and their associated facilities, licensed or authorized by the FCC, 

including structures that are constructed for wireless communications services including, 

but not limited to, private, broadcast, and public safety services, as well as unlicensed 

wireless services and fixed wireless services such as microwave backhaul, and the 

associated site. 

19.30.050  Applicability – Relationship to Other Rules and Regulations. 

(1) Sole and Exclusive Procedure.  Except as may be otherwise provided in this chapter, and 

not withstanding any other provisions in the City Code, the provisions of this chapter 

ATTACHMENT 3

149



Eligible Facilities Modification 

Ordinance - 9 

shall be the sole and exclusive procedure for review and approval of a proposed facilities 

modification which the applicant asserts is subject to review under Section 6409 of the 

Spectrum Act.  To the extent that other provisions of the City Code establish a parallel 

process for review and approval of a project permit application for a proposed facilities 

modification, the provisions of this chapter shall control.  In the event that any part of an 

application for project permit approval includes a proposed facilities modification, the 

proposed facilities modification portion of the application shall be reviewed under the 

provisions of this chapter.  In the event that an application for project permit approval 

includes a proposal to modify an eligible support structure, and the applicant does not 

assert in the application that the proposal is subject to review under Section 6409 of the 

Spectrum Act, such proposal shall not be subject to review under this chapter and may be 

subject to review under other applicable provisions of the City Code. 

(2) Non-conforming Structures.  This chapter shall not apply to a proposed facility 

modification to an eligible support structure that is not a legal conforming, or legal non-

conforming, structure at the time a completed eligible facilities modification application 

is filed with the City.  To the extent that the non-conforming structures and use 

provisions of the City Code would operate to prohibit or condition approval of a proposed 

facilities modification application otherwise allowed under this chapter, such provisions 

are superseded by the provisions of this chapter and shall not apply. 

(3) Replacement of Eligible Support Structure.  This chapter shall not apply to a proposed 

facility modification to an eligible support structure that will involve replacement of the 

tower or base station. 

(4) First Deployment; Base Station.  This chapter shall not apply to a proposed facility 

modification to a structure, other than a tower, that does not, at the time of submittal of 

the application, already house or support transmission equipment lawfully installed 

within or upon, or attached to, the structure. 

(5) Interpretation.  Interpretations of this chapter shall be guided by Section 6409 of the 

Spectrum Act; the FCC Eligible Facilities Request Rules, the FCC's Report and Order in, 

In re Acceleration of Broadband Deployment by Improving Wireless Facilities Siting 

Policies, WT Docket Nos. 13-238, 13-32; WC Docket No. 11-59; FCC 14-153; and 

Sections 19.30.020 (Adoption of Findings and Conclusions) and 19.30.030 (Purpose and 

Intent) of this Code. 

(6) SEPA Review.  Unless otherwise provided by law or regulation, decisions pertaining to 

an eligible facilities modification application are not subject to, and are exempt from, the 

requirements of RCW 43.21C.030(2)(c), if: 

(a) The proposed facilities modification would not increase the height of the eligible 

support structure by more than ten percent (10%), or twenty (20) feet, whichever 

is greater; or 

ATTACHMENT 3

ATTACHMENT 3

150



Eligible Facilities Modification 

Ordinance - 10 

(b) The mounting of equipment that would involve adding an appurtenance to the 

body of the eligible support structure would not protrude from the edge of the 

structure more than twenty (20) feet, or more than the width of the structure at the 

level of the appurtenance, whichever is greater; (See RCW 43.21C.0384 and 

WAC 197-11-800(25)) 

(c) The authority to condition or deny an application pursuant to Chapter 43.21 RCW 

is preempted, or otherwise supplanted, by Section 6409 of the Spectrum Act. 

(7) Reservation of Authority.  Nothing herein is intended or shall operate to waive or limit 

the City's right to enforce, or condition approval on, compliance with generally 

acceptable building, structural, electrical, and safety codes and with other laws codifying 

objective standards reasonably related to health and safety. 

19.30.060  Permit Classification. An eligible facilities modification permit shall be classified as 

an administrative permit subject to review and approval or denial by the approval authority. 

19.30.070  Application Submittal Requirements; Determination of Completeness. 

(1) Purpose.  This section sets forth the submittal requirements for an eligible facilities 

modification application.  The purpose of the submittal requirements is to ensure that the 

City has all information and documentation that is reasonably necessary to determine if 

the applicant's proposed facilities modification will substantially change the physical 

dimensions of an eligible support structure.  The submittal requirements are not intended 

to require the applicant to establish the need for the proposed modifications or to justify 

the business decision to propose such modification. 

(2) Submittal Requirements.  No eligible facilities modification application shall be deemed 

complete unless it is, in writing, accompanied by the applicable application and review 

fee (Do we need to add language re: MFS when referencing a fee??), includes the 

required submittals, and is attested to by the authorized person submitting the application 

on behalf of the applicant, certifying the truth and accuracy of the information provided 

in the application.  The application shall include the following submittals, unless waived 

by the approval authority: 

(a) The following contact information for the Authorized Person: 

(i) Name; 

(ii) Title; 

(iii) Mailing Address; 

(iv) Phone Number; and 

(v) Electronic Mail Address (optional). 

(b) The legal and dba names, mailing address, Washington tax number, and contact 

phone number(s) of Applicant. 

151

ATTACHMENT 3



Eligible Facilities Modification 

Ordinance - 11 

(c) If a corporation, the name and address of the registered agent of Applicant in 

Washington State, and the state of incorporation of Applicant. 

(d) If Applicant is an entity, other than a corporation, such as a partnership or limited 

liability company, the names and business addresses of the principals. 

(e) An assertion that the proposed facilities modification is subject to review under 

Section 6409 of the Spectrum Act. 

(f) If the applicant is not the owner or person in control of the eligible support 

structure and/or site, the following shall be required: 

An attestation that the owner or person in control of the eligible support structure 

and/or site has consented to the proposed facilities modification.  If the eligible 

support structure is located in a public right-of-way, the applicant must also attest 

that applicant has authorization to install, maintain and operate transmission 

equipment in, under and above the public right-of-way. 

(g) If the applicant proposes a modification involving collocation of transmission 

equipment or the replacement of transmission equipment, the following shall be 

required: 

Complete copies of the underlying land use approvals for siting of the tower or 

base station proposed to be modified, establishing that, at the time of submittal of 

the application, such tower or base station constituted an eligible support 

structure. 

(h) If the applicant proposes a modification that will result in an increase in height of 

the eligible support structure, the following shall be required: 

Record drawings, as-built plans, or the equivalent, showing the height of the 

eligible support structure, (a) as originally constructed and granted approval by 

the City or other applicable zoning or similar regulatory authority, or (b) as of the 

most recent modification that received city, or other local zoning or regulatory 

approval, prior to the passage of the Spectrum Act, whichever height is greater. 

(i) If the applicant proposes a modification to an eligible support structure, which 

structure, or proposed modification of the same, is subject to pre-existing 

restrictions or requirements imposed by a reviewing official or decision-making 

body pursuant to authority granted under the City Code, or an ordinance or a 

municipal code of another local government authority, the following shall be 

required: 

A copy of the document (e.g., CUP or SUP) setting forth such pre-existing 

restrictions or requirements together with a certification that the proposed 

facilities modification conforms to such restrictions or requirements; provided 

ATTACHMENT 3

152



Eligible Facilities Modification 

Ordinance - 12 

that, such certification shall have no application to the extent the proposed 

facilities modification relates solely to an increase in height, increase in width, 

addition of cabinets, or new excavation, that does not result in a substantial 

change in the physical dimensions of the eligible support structure. 

(j) If the applicant proposes a modification to an eligible support structure, which 

structure, or proposed modification of the same, is subject to pre-existing 

concealment restrictions or requirements, or was constructed with concealment 

elements, the following shall be required: 

Applicant shall set forth the facts and circumstances demonstrating that the 

proposed modification would not defeat the existing concealment elements of the 

eligible support structure.  If the proposed modification will alter the exterior 

dimensions or appearance of the eligible support structure, applicant shall include 

a detailed visual simulation depicting how the eligible support structure will 

appear after the proposed modification is complete.  The visual simulation shall 

depict to scale the eligible support structure in relation to the trees, landscaping 

and other structures adjacent to, or in the immediate vicinity of, the eligible 

support structure. 

(k) If the applicant proposes a modification that will protrude from the edge of a non-

tower eligible support structure, the following shall be required: 

Record drawings, as-built plans, or the equivalent, showing at a minimum the 

edge of the eligible support structure at the location of the proposed modification. 

(l) If the applicant proposes a modification to an eligible support structure that will 

(a) include any excavation, (b) would result in a protrusion from the edge of a 

tower that exceeds an existing protrusion of any transmission equipment attached 

to a tower, or (c) would protrude from the edge of a non-tower eligible support 

structure, the following shall be required: 

A description of the boundaries of the site together with a scale drawing based on 

an accurate traverse, with angular and lineal dimensions, depicting the boundaries 

of the site in elevation and dimensions of the new or replacement transmission 

equipment.  The City may require a survey by a land surveyor licensed in the state 

of Washington when, in the judgment of the approval authority, a survey is 

reasonably necessary to verify the boundaries of the site to determine if the 

proposed facilities modification would result in a substantial change in the 

physical dimensions of the eligible support structure. 

(m) If the applicant proposes a modification to the eligible support structure that 

includes hardening through structural enhancement, the following shall be 

required: 

ATTACHMENT 3

153



Eligible Facilities Modification 

Ordinance - 13 

A technical report by a qualified engineer accredited by the state of Washington, 

demonstrating that the structural enhancement is performed in connection with 

and is necessary to support the proposed collocation, removal, or replacement of 

transmission equipment and conforms to applicable code requirements.  The City 

may retain the services of an independent technical expert to review, evaluate and 

provide an opinion regarding the applicant's demonstration of necessity. 

(n) If the applicant proposes a modification to a tower, the following shall be 

required: 

A stamped report by a state of Washington registered professional engineer 

demonstrating that the tower with the proposed modifications will comply with 

applicable structural, electrical and safety codes, including by way of example, 

and not limitation, EIA/TIA-222-Revision G, published by the American National 

Standards Institute (as amended), allowable wind speed for the applicable zone in 

which the tower is located, and describing the general structural capacity of the 

tower with the proposed modifications, including: 

(i) The number and type of antennas that can be accommodated; 

(ii) The basis for the calculation of capacity; and 

(iii) A written statement that the proposal complies with all federal guidelines 

regarding interference and ANSI standards as adopted by the FCC, 

including but not limited to nonionizing electromagnetic radiation (NIER) 

standards. 

The City may retain the services of an independent technical expert to review, 

evaluate, and provide an opinion regarding the applicant's demonstration of 

compliance. 

(o) If the applicant proposes a modification to a base station, the following shall be 

required: 

A stamped report by a state of Washington registered professional engineer 

demonstrating that the base station, with the proposed modifications, will comply 

with applicable structural, electrical and safety codes. 

(p) If the applicant proposes a modification requiring, alteration to the eligible 

support structure, excavation, installation of new equipment cabinets, or any other 

activities impacting or altering the land, existing structures, fencing, or 

landscaping on the site, the following shall be required: 

A detailed site plan and drawings, showing the true north point, a graphic scale 

and, drawn to an appropriate decimal scale, indicating and depicting, (a) the 

location, elevation and dimensions of the existing eligible support structure, (b) 

ATTACHMENT 3

154



Eligible Facilities Modification 

Ordinance - 14 

the location, elevation and dimensions of the existing transmission equipment, (c) 

the location, elevation and dimensions of the transmission equipment, if any, 

proposed to be collocated or that will replace existing transmission equipment, (d) 

the location, elevation and dimensions of any proposed new equipment cabinets 

and the intended use of each, (e) any proposed modification to the eligible support 

structure, (f) the location of existing structures on the site, including fencing, 

screening, trees, and other significant site features, and (g) the location of any 

areas where excavation is proposed showing the elevations, depths, and width of 

the proposed excavation and materials and dimensions of the equipment to be 

placed in the area excavated. 

(q) Copies of any environmental documents required by any federal agency.  These 

shall include the environmental assessment required by 47 C.F.R. Part 1 (PART 1 

– PRACTICE AND PROCEDURE), Section 1.1307, as amended, or, in the event

than an FCC environmental assessment is not required, a statement that described 

the specific factors that obviate the requirement for an environmental assessment. 

(3) Waiver of Submittal Requirement.  The approval authority may waive any submittal 

requirement upon determination that the required submittal, or part thereof, is not 

reasonably related to the substantial change criteria.  A waiver, to be effective, must be in 

writing and signed by the approval authority. 

(4) When Received.  An eligible facilities modification application, and any supplemental 

submittals, shall be deemed received by the City upon the date such application, or 

supplemental submittal, is filed with the    .  An application, and any 

supplemental submittals, must be filed in person during regular business hours of the City 

and must be accompanied by the applicable permit review fee(s) (Do we need to add 

language re: MFS??).  Any application received by the City without contemporaneous 

payment, or deposit, of the applicable permit review fees will be rejected. 

(5) Completed Application; Determination; Tolling. 

(a) Determination of Completeness.  The approval authority shall, within thirty (30) 

days of receipt of the application, review the application for completeness.  An 

application is complete if it includes the applicable permit review fee(s) and 

contains all of the application submittal requirements set forth at OHMC 

19.30.070(2) of this chapter, unless waived by the approval authority pursuant to 

OHMC 19.30.070(3).  The determination of completeness shall not preclude the 

approval authority from requesting additional information or studies either at the 

time of the determination of completeness or subsequently if new or additional 

information is required, or substantial changes in the proposed action occur, or the 

proposed facilities modification is modified by applicant, as determined by the 

approval authority. 

(b) Incomplete Application.  The approval authority shall notify the applicant within 

thirty (30) days of receipt of the application that the application is incomplete.  

ATTACHMENT 3

155



Eligible Facilities Modification 

Ordinance - 15 

Such notice shall clearly and specifically delineate all missing documents or 

information. 

(c) Tolling Timeframe for Review.  The application review period begins to run 

when the application is received, and may be tolled when the approval authority 

determines that the application is incomplete and provides notice as set forth 

below.  The application review period may also be tolled by mutual agreement of 

the approval authority and applicant.  The timeframe for review is not tolled by a 

moratorium on the review of eligible facility modification applications. 

(i) To toll the timeframe for review for incompleteness, the approval 

authority must provide written notice to the applicant within thirty (30) 

days of the date of receipt of the application, clearly and specifically 

delineating all missing documents or information.  Such delineated 

information is limited to submittals set forth in OHMC 19.30.070(2) and 

any supplemental information requested by the approval authority that is 

reasonably related to determining whether the proposed facilities 

modification will substantially change the physical dimension of an 

eligible support structure. 

(ii) The timeframe for review begins running again when the City is in receipt 

of applicant's supplemental submission in response to the approval 

authority's notice of incompleteness. 

(iii) Following a supplemental submission, the approval authority shall have 

ten (10) days to notify the applicant that the supplemental submission did 

not provide the information identified in the original notice delineating 

missing information.  The timeframe is tolled in the case of second or 

subsequent notices pursuant to the procedures identified in this paragraph 

(5)(c)(iii).  Except as may be otherwise agreed to by the applicant and the 

approval authority, second or subsequent notices of incompleteness may 

not specify missing documents or information that was not delineated in 

the original notice of incompleteness. 

(iv) A notice of incompleteness from the City will be deemed received by the 

Applicant upon the earlier of, personal service upon the authorized person, 

delivery by electronic mail to the authorized person (if such delivery is 

authorized for receipt of notice by the authorized person), or three (3) days 

from deposit of the notice in the United States Mail, postage prepaid, and 

in an envelope properly addressed to the authorized person using the 

address set forth in the application. 

(d) Modification of Application.  In the event that after submittal of the application, 

or as a result of any subsequent submittals, applicant modifies the proposed 

facilities modification described in the initial application, the application as 

modified will be considered a new application subject to commencement of a new 

ATTACHMENT 3

156



Eligible Facilities Modification 

Ordinance - 16 

application review period; provided that, applicant and the approval authority 

may, in the alternative, enter into a mutually agreeable tolling agreement allowing 

the City to request additional submittals and additional time that may be 

reasonably necessary for review of the modified application. 

19.30.080  Review of Application; Approval. 

(1) Review of Application.  The approval authority shall review an eligible facilities 

modification application to determine if the proposed facilities modification is subject to 

this chapter, and if so, if the proposed facilities modification will result in a substantial 

change to the physical dimensions of an eligible support structure. 

(2) Timeframe for Review.  Within sixty (60) days of the date on which the City receives an 

eligible facilities modification application, less any time period that may be excluded 

under the tolling provisions of this chapter or a tolling agreement between the applicant 

and the approval authority, the approval authority shall approve the application and 

contemporaneously issue an eligible facilities modification permit unless the approval 

authority determines that the application is not subject to this chapter, or the proposed 

facilities modification will substantially change the physical dimension of an eligible 

support structure. 

(3) Approval; Denial.  An eligible facilities application shall be approved, and an eligible 

facilities permit issued, upon determination by the approval authority that the proposed 

facilities modification is subject to this chapter and that it does not substantially change 

the physical dimensions of an eligible support structure.  An eligible facilities application 

shall be denied upon determination by the approval authority that the proposed facilities 

modification is not subject to this chapter or will substantially change the physical 

dimensions of an eligible support structure.  A proposed facilities modification will 

substantially change the physical dimensions of an eligible support structure if it meets 

any of the substantial change criteria. 

(4) Deemed Approved Application.  An application that has been deemed approved shall be 

and constitute the equivalent of an eligible facilities modification permit, except as may 

be otherwise determined by a court of competent jurisdiction, and shall be subject to 

generally applicable enforcement and compliance requirements in the same manner as an 

eligible facilities modification permit issued pursuant to this chapter. 

(5) Denial of Application.  A denial of an eligible facilities modification application shall set 

forth in writing the reasons for the denial and shall be provided to the applicant. 

(6) Code Requirements.  Any eligible facilities modification permit issued pursuant to this 

chapter, and any application that has been deemed approved, shall be and is conditioned 

upon compliance with any generally applicable building, structural, electrical, and safety 

codes and other laws codifying objective standards reasonably related to health and 

safety.  Violation of any such applicable code or standard shall be deemed to be a 

violation of the eligible facilities modification or deemed approved application. 

ATTACHMENT 3

157



Eligible Facilities Modification 

Ordinance - 17 

(7) Term of Eligible Facilities Modification Permit.  An eligible facilities modification 

permit issued pursuant to this chapter, and any deemed approved application, shall be 

valid for a term of one hundred eighty (180) days from the date of issuance, or the date 

the application is deemed approved. 

(8) Remedies.  Notwithstanding any other provisions in the City Code, no administrative 

review is provided for review of a decision to condition, deny or approve an application.  

Applicant and the City retain any and all remedies that are available at law or in equity, 

including by way of example and not limitation, those remedies set forth in the FCC 

Eligible Facilities Request Rules and remedies available under the Land Use Petition Act.  

In the event no other time period is provided at law for bringing an action for a remedy, 

any action challenging a denial of an application or notice of a deemed approved remedy, 

shall be brought within thirty (30) days following the date of denial or following the date 

of notification of the deemed approved remedy.  (Note:  The FCC Report and Order in In re 

Acceleration of Broadband Deployment by Improving Wireless Facilities Siting Policies, WT Docket Nos. 

13-238, 13-32; WC Docket No. 11-59; FCC 14-153, Par's 234-236, provides that the City shall have thirty 

(30) days from the date of notification by the applicant of a deemed granted remedy to bring a legal action 

in a court of competent jurisdiction to challenge the deemed granted remedy, and that the applicant shall 

have thirty (30) days from the date of denial to bring a legal action in a court of competent (add: 

jurisdiction?) challenging a denial of the application.) 

19.30.090  Substantial Change Criteria.  A proposed facilities modification will substantially 

change the physical dimensions of an eligible support structure if it meets any of the following 

criteria: 

(1) For towers other than towers in the public rights-of-way, it increases the height of the 

tower by more than ten percent (10%) or by the height of one (1) additional antenna array 

with separation from the nearest existing antenna not to exceed twenty (20) feet, 

whichever is greater; for other eligible support structures, it increases the height of the 

structure by more than ten percent (10%) or more than ten (10) feet, whichever is greater; 

Changes in height should be measured from the original support structure in cases where 

deployments are or will be separated horizontally, such as on buildings' rooftops; in other 

circumstances, changes in height should be measured from the dimensions of the tower or 

base station, inclusive of originally approved appurtenances and any modifications that 

were approved prior to the passage of the Spectrum Act.  (Note:  The FCC Report and Order in 

In re Acceleration of Broadband Deployment by Improving Wireless Facilities Siting Policies, WT Docket 

Nos. 13-238, 13-32; WC Docket No. 11-59; FCC 14-153, Par's 234-236, provides that the City shall have 

thirty (30) days from the date of notification by the applicant of a deemed granted remedy to bring a legal 

action in a court of competent jurisdiction to challenge the deemed granted remedy, and that the applicant 

shall have thirty (30) days from the date of denial to bring a legal action in a court of competent (add: 

jurisdiction?) challenging a denial of the application.) 

(2) For towers other than towers in the public rights-of-way, it involves adding an 

appurtenance to the body of the tower that would protrude from the edge of the tower 

more than twenty (20) feet, or more than the width of the tower structure at the level of 

the appurtenance, whichever is greater; for other eligible support structures, it involves 

ATTACHMENT 3

158



Eligible Facilities Modification 

Ordinance - 18 

adding an appurtenance to the body of the structure that would protrude from the edge of 

the structure by more than six (6) feet. 

(3) For any eligible support structure, it involves installation of more than the standard 

number of new equipment cabinets for the technology involved, but not to exceed four 

(4) cabinets; or, for towers in the public right-of-way and the base stations, it involves 

installation of any new equipment cabinets on the ground if there are no pre-existing 

ground cabinets associated with the structure, or else involves installation of ground 

cabinets associated with the structure, or else involves installation of ground cabinets that 

are more than ten percent (10%) larger in height or overall volume than any other ground 

cabinets associated with the structure; 

(a) it entails any excavation or deployment outside the current site; 

(b) it would defeat the concealment elements of the eligible support structure; or 

(c) it does not comply with conditions associated with the siting approval of the 

construction or modification of the eligible support structure or base station 

equipment, provided however that this limitation does not apply to any 

modification that is noncompliant only in a manner that would not exceed the 

thresholds identified in this section OHMC 19.30.090. 

(Note:  The FCC rules refer to the date of passage of the Spectrum Act.  The Spectrum Act was enacted on 

February 22, 2012.  Presumably the FCC intended to refer to the date of enactment as the date of passage.) 

19.30.100  Non-conforming Structure; Termination. 

(1) Application.  The provisions of this section OHMC 19.30.100 shall apply to any facilities 

modification constructed, installed, placed or erected pursuant to an eligible facilities 

modification permit, or pursuant to a deemed approved remedy, which facilities 

modification did not conform to zoning and/or development regulations, exclusive of this 

chapter, in effect at the time the completed eligible facilities modification application was 

filed. 

(2) Non-conforming Structure Determination.  A facilities modification to which this section 

applies is subject to termination as a non-conforming structure upon the following 

conditions: 

(a) Final, Non-Appealable Decision.  An appellate court, in a final and non-

appealable decision, determines that §6409(a)(1) of the Spectrum Act is 

unconstitutional or otherwise determined to be invalid or unenforceable; and 

(b) Notice of Non-Conforming Structure Determination.  The City provides written 

notice to the applicant that the City has determined that the facilities modification 

did not conform to zoning and/or development regulations, exclusive of this 

chapter, in effect at the time the completed eligible facilities modification 

ATTACHMENT 3

159



Eligible Facilities Modification 

Ordinance - 19 

application was filed and that the facilities modification constitutes a non-

conforming structure pursuant to the provisions hereof and must be made 

conforming or the facilities modification terminated. 

(3) Conformance; Termination.  Upon receipt of notice of the City's non-conforming 

structure determination, applicant shall abate the non-conformance by either, confirming 

the site to the zoning and development regulations in effect at the time the completed 

eligible facilities modification application was filed, or removing the facilities 

modification and returning the site to the condition that existed prior to the construction, 

installation, placement or erection of the facilities modification.  The time period for 

conformance shall be one (1) year from the date of the City's notice of the non-

conforming structure determination. 

(4) Health and Safety Codes.  Nothing in this section shall relieve the applicant from 

compliance with applicable building, structural, electrical, and safety codes and with 

other laws codifying objective standards reasonably related to health and safety. 

(5) Administrative Appeal.  The applicant, or its successors or assigns, may appeal the City's 

determination of non-conformance to the City Hearing Examiner by filing a notice of 

appeal within _____________ (____) calendar days of the date of the determination of 

non-conformance, excluding holidays. 

19.30.110  Enforcement; Violation.  Compliance with the provisions of this chapter is 

mandatory.  Any violation hereof is subject to enforcement under the code enforcement 

provisions set forth at _________ of the City Code. 

Section Two.  Severability.  Should any section, paragraph, sentence, clause or phrase of this 

Ordinance, or its application to any person or circumstance, be declared unconstitutional or 

otherwise invalid for any reason, or should any portion of this Ordinance be pre-empted by state 

or federal law or regulation, such decision or pre-emption shall not affect the validity of the 

remaining portions of this Ordinance or its application to other persons or circumstances. 

Section Three.  Effective Date.  This Ordinance shall be in full force and effect five (5) days 

after publication. 

PASSED by the City Council this _______ day of ___________________, 2015. 

THE CITY OF OAK HARBOR 

Veto (    ) 

Approve (     ) 

By 

Scott Dudley, Mayor 

Dated: 

ATTACHMENT 3

160



Eligible Facilities Modification 

Ordinance - 20 

Attest: 

Anna Thompson, City Clerk 

Approved as to Form: 

Nikki Esparza, City Attorney 

Published:  

L:\LGLA\WORK\RES-ORD2015\Eligible Facilities Modifications Ord #1.docx 

ATTACHMENT 3

161



2016 

COMPREHENSIVE PLAN 

UPDATE 

Workshop 

162





FROM: Cac Kamak, AICP 

Senior Planner 

Staff will continue the discussion on the update to the Land Use Element of the Comprehensive 

Plan.  The Planning Commission workshop on June 17, 2015 identified the limitations of the 

current structure of goals and policies within the Land Use Element.  Staff will discuss options 

for restructuring the goals and policies at his meeting.  The discussion will be in a workshop 

setting to encourage a more dynamic discussion between the Planning Commission and staff.   

Date: July 28, 2015 

Subject: 2016 Comprehensive Plan 

Major Update – Land Use 

Element    

City of Oak Harbor 
Planning Commission Report 

163




	AGENDA - July 28, 2015
	MINUTES - June 23, 2015
	Six-Year Transportation Improvement Program
	Medical Marijuana
	COMPREHENSIVE PLAN AMENDMENT - LAND USE CHANGE
	Telecommunications Infrastrcture
	2016 Comprehensive Plan Update - Workshop



